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On behalf of the board of Directors
of Sersol Berhad, I am pleased to
present the Annual Report of the
Company and the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December
2015 (“FY 2015”).

Operating environment
For the FY 2015, Sersol Berhad recorded
positive growth for our coatings business
in Malaysia and Thailand compared to FY
2014.
Our Malaysian operations benefited from our
focus on the growth of decorative coatings
which were more stable than plastic and
metal coatings. The increase in revenue was
due to increase in revenue from new housing
projects and painting contractors.

The currency situation, with a generally
weak Ringgit Malaysia, positively impacted
the Group’s results for the FY 2015. Costs continued to rise in line with the growth and the Group will continue to
invest in resources to grow business. Management is looking into cost optimisation internally and at the same time
balance cost development with expected growth.
Lower crude oil prices also mitigated the cost increase from our coatings products and business operation. However,
the implementation of Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) on 1 April 2015 added the pressure to our rising operating
cost and dampened our competitiveness and business turnover.
Review of the company performance
For the FY 2015, our Group’s revenue increased by RM4.367 million, representing 25.80% to RM21.293 million as
compared to RM16.926 million in the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (“FY 2014”). Our Group recorded
a lower loss after taxation of RM1.844 million for the FY 2015 as compared to the loss after taxation of RM4.447
million for the FY 2014. The improvement of the Group’s revenue was mainly due to the increase in demand for
Plastic and Metal coatings in Thailand and Decorative coatings in Malaysia. The losses incurred during FY 2015
were mainly from the provision of doubtful debts and additional tax payable. Our Thailand branch recorded the best
ever turnover of RM5.3 million in FY 2015 as compared to RM3.4 million in FY 2014, especially due to the strong
demand for the Plastic and Metal coatings in the first half of 2015 from existing and new customers.
Prospects for Year 2016
Year 2016 will be more challenging year for paint and coating industry market. However, the Group would remain
cautious on the outlook for its financial performance and looking at the cost optimisation in its resources. Despite
challenging markets, SerSol will continue to compete for the limited new building contracts and focus on resources
on the maintenance market.
At the same time, SerSol will continue to consolidate our business operation by improving our products quality,cost
optimisation and continue to seek for upstream and downstream business opportunities by expanding its revenue
base in Malaysia and Thailand to be more profitable.
Acknowledgements
Despite it being a challenging year, the Group was able to narrow its losses with improved coatings businesses.
We are also looking forward for further improvement in the financial performance of the Group in year 2016. In this
respect, I wish to record my appreciation to the management led by Bernard Tan and all employees of the company
to overcome the challenges and gather all the hard work to turn around the Company to be profitable in 2016.
On behalf of the Board, we wish to thank all our valued customers, business partners, suppliers, shareholders,
government authorities and all fellow Board members for their continuous strong support to the Group.
Thank you.
Dato’ Larry Seow Thiam Fatt
Chairman
28 March 2016
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DATO’ SEOW THIAM FATT
• Age 75, Malaysian
• Independent Non-Executive
Chairman

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt, also known as Dato’ Larry Seow, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 25 June 2012
and re-designated as Chairman on 19 April 2013. He is a Fellow of CPA
Australia, Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and past Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He
is also a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the Malaysian
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). He is a past President of
MICPA and also served four years as a government appointed Independent
Director of the previous Kuala Lumpur Commodities Exchange (KLCE). He is
a past Council Member of the Malaysian Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (MAICSA) and is currently the Chairman of its Audit
Committee.

He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Tan Chong Motor
Holdings Berhad, Warisan TC Holdings Berhad and AmMetLife Insurance
Berhad. He was also an Independent Director of Affin Investment Bank
Berhad from April 2004 to September 2011 and a past Independent Director
of ING Insurance Berhad and ING Funds Berhad.

Tan fie jen
• Age 50, Malaysian
• Acting Managing Director

Mr Tan Fie Jen, was appointed to the Board on 1 September 2004 and redesignated as Acting Managing Director on 14 April 2014. He graduated
from the Tunku Abdul Rahman College with a Diploma in Building in 1989.
He began his career as Sales Executive in various companies such as
Hunter Products (M) Sdn Bhd, Supermax Enterprise and Lea Tat (M) Sdn
Bhd. He joined the Group of the Company as Sales Executive in 1992 and
has been promoted as Assistant General Manager in 2001. He has 23 years
of experience in the industrial coating industries. He was promoted to Chief
Operating Officer in Multi Square Sdn Bhd in 2006 and he was a Marketing
Director of SerSol since 2008. Currently, he is the Acting Managing Director
of SerSol.
He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict of interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company. He has not been convicted of any
offence within the past 10 years.
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He does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict or interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

He has more than 20 years’ professional experience as a former Partner in
the accounting firms of Messrs Larry Seow & Co, Moores Rowland and Arthur
Young. He diverted from professional practice in 1994 and thereafter held
various senior positions in the private and public sectors, including being the
General Manager of the Financial Reporting Surveillance and Compliance
Department of the Securities Commission of Malaysia.

Directors Profile
– continued

Toh Hong Chye
• Age 40, Malaysian
• Executive Director

He is the founder of Messrs H.C. Toh & Co, involving in company secretary,
accounting and business advisory of companies from various industries. His
experience covers audit and assurance engagements, corporate reporting
and compliance, taxation and wide ranging overseas exposures. He sits on
the Board of AppAsia Berhad. He also sits on the boards of several private
limited companies.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)
Annual Report 2015
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Mr Toh Hong Chye was appointed as an Executive Director on 1 March
2012. Mr Toh has a qualification from the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) in 2000, and has a Masters of Business Administration
in Finance from the International Islamic University in Malaysia in 2006.
He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA).

He is a chairman of Option Committee of SerSol.
He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict of interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company. He has not been convicted for any
offence within the past 10 years.

ONG CHOOI LEE
• Age 53, Malaysian
• Executive Director

Mr Ong Chooi Lee was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 30 April 2012 and re-designated as an Executive Director
on 14 April 2014. He graduated from St. Xavier’s Institution of Penang
in 1979. For his tertiary qualifications, he holds an Australian diploma of
Management and a Diploma of Marketing. He has 28 years of experience in
property development, fast food and education. He began his career in 1984
as an Operation executive, coordinating the development projects for MBF
Holdings Berhad (property division). He also held various positions in various
division including overseeing projects out of countries such as Singapore,
Thailand and Indonesia. During his working career, he was part of the team
which brought in Grandy’s inc fast food chain in Asia Pacific. He ventures
into various businesses such as property development, education, food &
beverages and one of his successful projects is Suriamas development in
Bandar Sunway of which he is the founder of the project. He initiated the
conceptual of Rompin Swiftlet Eco Park from scratch and successfully
obtained the approval from the Local Council Majlis Daerah Rompin, Pahang.
He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of HCK Capital Group Berhad.
He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict of interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company. He has not been convicted for any
offence within the past 10 years.

Directors Profile
– continued

LOW KIM LENG
• Age 53, Malaysian
• Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Low Kim Leng was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 30 April 2012. He graduated from Manchester
Metropolitan University (UK) with the degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) (Law)
in 1983 and as an Utter Barrister of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn,
he was admitted to the English Bar in 1984. He was called to the Malaysian
Bar and was admitted as an advocate and solicitor of the High Court of
Malaya in 1985.
He practises law under the name and style of Messrs Ringo Low & Associates
of which he is now a principal partner. He is a registered Trade Mark Agent.
He has been appointed a Notary Public to carry out notarial functions since
2004. He is also a legal advisor to various national organisations.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict of interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company. He has not been convicted for any
offence within the past 10 years.

YEONG SIEW LEE

She is a Chartered Accountant and also a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (MIA). She began her career with GHL Systems Berhad
(“GHL”), a company listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad, as an Assistant Accountant in 2003 and moved up the ranks and
became Head/Assistant General manager of Finance in 2008 to supervise
the company’s local and overseas accounting teams. She left GHL in August
2009 to venture into business in the consumer industry and was working as
a finance adviser for SMR HR Group Sdn Bhd.
She is a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of Asia Media Group
Berhad and Independent Non-Executive Director of Bright Packaging
Industry Berhad.
She does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company, nor any conflict of interest in any business
arrangement involving the Company. She has not been convicted for any
offence within the past 10 years.
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• Age 38, Malaysian
• Independent Non-Executive Director

Madam Yeong Siew Lee was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 11 August 2014. She Graduated from University
of Wales College (UK) with the degree of Bachelor of of Science (Honours)
(Accounting and Finance) in 1999 and complete her Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (UK) in 2004.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

He is a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of AppAsia Berhad.

Corporate

Governance Statement

The Board of Directors fully support the recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012
(Code) which set out the broad principles and recommendations for good corporate governance and best practice
for listed company. The Company has in place a Board Charter that sorts out, amongst others, the responsibilities,
authorities, procedures and policies. More information on the Board Charter can be found in the Company’s website
at www.sersol.com.my.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Board is guided by the Principles and Recommendations as promulgated by the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance 2012 (the “MCCG 2012”) and the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements”).
This Statement sets out the key aspects of how the Company has applied the Principles and Recommendations
of the MCCG 2012 during the financial year under review which includes commitment to excellence in governance
standards. Where a specific Recommendation of the MCCG 2012 has not been observed during the financial year
under review, the non-observance, including the reasons thereof, is included in this Statement.

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT
1.1

Clear functions of the Board and Management
The Group acknowledges the pivotal role played by the Board in the stewardship of its directions and
operations, and ultimately the enhancement of long-term shareholders’ value. To fulfill this role, the Board is
responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Group, including its strategic direction, establishing
goals for management and monitoring the achievement of these goals.

•
06
•
Annual Report 2015

Beyond the matters reserved for the Board’s decision, the Board has delegated the authority to achieve the
corporate objective to the Managing Director and/or Acting Managing Director who has assumed all the
responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer. The Managing Director and/or Acting Managing Director remains
accountable to the Board for the authority that is delegated to him, and for the performance of the Group.
The Board monitors the decisions and actions of the Managing Director and/or Acting Managing Director
and the performance of the Group to gain assurance that progress is being made towards the corporate
objectives.
1.2

Clear roles and responsibilities
The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility for the governance and management of the Group and
fiduciary responsibility for the financial health of the company. The Group acknowledges the importance of
having an effective Board to lead and control the Group. The Board’s responsibilities include:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)

Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Group.
Overseeing the conduct of the Group’s businesses to evaluate whether the businesses are being properly
managed.
Identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks.
Succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of, and where appropriate,
replacing key management.
Developing and implementing a Corporate Disclosure Policy (including an investor relations programme
or shareholder communications policy) for the Group.
Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of our Group’s internal control systems and management
information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives
and guidelines.
Monitoring and reviewing management processes aimed at ensuring the integrity of financial and other
reporting.
Ensuring that the Company’s financial statements are true, fair and conform to the accounting standards.
Ensuring that the Company adheres to high standards of ethics and corporate behaviour.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
1.3

Formalised ethical standards through Code of Ethics
Code of Ethics
The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics for the Board. The Code of Ethics is intended to focus on the Board
and each Director on areas of ethical risk, provide guidance to Directors to help them recognise and deal with
ethical issues, provide mechanisms to report unethical conduct and help foster a culture of integrity, honesty
and accountability.

The principle of the Code of Conduct is based on principles in relation to trust, integrity, responsibility,
excellence, loyalty, commitment, dedication, discipline, diligence and professionalism. The Code of Conduct is
reviewed and updated regularly by the Senior Management and the Board to meet Sersol’s needs to address
the changing conditions where it works.
Copies of the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct are available in the Company’s website.
Whistle Blower Policy

Managers, officers and employees in supervisory roles shall report directly to the Senior Independent Director
on any allegations of suspected improper activities – whether received as a protected disclosure, including
those relating to financial reporting, unethical or illegal conduct, can be verbal or in writing and forwarded
in a sealed envelope, reported by their subordinates in the ordinary course of performing their duties, or
discovered in the course of performing their own duties.
A summary of the Whistle Blower Policy is available in the Company’s website.
1.4

Strategies promoting sustainability
The Group recognises the importance of sustainability and its increasing impact to the business. The Group
is committed to understanding and implementing sustainable practices and exploring the benefits to the
business whilst attempting to achieve the right balance between the needs of the wider community, the
requirements of shareholders, stakeholders and economic success. The Board has adopted a Sustainability
Policy for the Group.
The Company’s activities on sustainability agenda for the year under review are set out on page 23 of the
annual report.

1.5

Access to information and advice
The Board’s right to access to all information within the Group whether as a full board or in their individual
capacity, in furtherance of their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company, is entrenched in the
Board Charter.
All Board members whether as a full board or in their individual capacity, in furtherance of their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company, shall be able to obtain an independent professional advice at
the expense of the Company.
All Board members are provided with documents and relevant information for them to review the agenda
items prior to Board meetings. Senior management and external advisors are invited to attend Board meetings
when necessary to provide further details, clarifications on matters being tabled.
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As part of the Company’s continuous effort to ensure that good corporate governance practices are being
adopted, the Company has an established Whistle Blower Policy to provide a clear line of communication
and reporting of concerns for employees at all levels.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group further has a Code of Conduct for Directors, management and employees of the Group. The Code
of Conduct is established to promote the corporate culture which engenders ethical conduct that permeates
throughout the Group.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
1.6

Qualified and competent Company Secretaries

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Board has access to information with regard to the activities within the Group and to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring the Board meeting procedures are adhered
to. All matters discussed and resolutions passed at each Board Meeting are recorded in the minutes of the
Board meeting.
The Board is regularly updated and advised by the Company Secretaries who are qualified, experienced and
competent on new statutory and regulatory requirements, and the resultant implications to the Company and
Directors in relation to their duties and responsibilities. The Company Secretaries, who oversee adherence with
board policies and procedures, brief the Board on the proposed contents and timing of material announcements
to be made to regulators. The Company Secretaries attend all Board and Board Committees meetings and
ensure that meetings are properly convened, and that accurate and proper records of the proceedings and
resolutions passed are taken and maintained accordingly.
1.7

The Board Charter was adopted by the Board and reviewed annually to achieve the objectives of transparency,
accountability and effective performance for the Group and the enhancement of corporate governance
standards with the aim of enshrining the concepts of good governance as promulgated in the MCCG 2012.
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Board Charter

The Board Charter established promotes high standards of corporate governance and is designed to provide
guidance and clarity for Directors and management with regard to the roles of the Board and its committees.
The Board Charter is available in the Company’s website.

STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
2.1	Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three (3) Non-Executive Directors and meets as and when required.
The composition, term of reference, duties and responsibilities and other information of the Nomination
Committee are set out on pages 19 to 21 in this Annual Report.
2.2

Develop, maintain and review criteria for recruitment processes and annual assessment of Directors
The Nomination Committee is responsible for annual assessment of Board’s required mix of skill, experience,
quality and core competencies of the Directors, annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and the contribution of each individual Director.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for assessing the nominees and making recommendations for
new appointments to the Board considering the skills, knowledge, professionalism required by the Group. The
actual decision as to who should be nominated will be the responsibility of the full Board after considering the
recommendations of the Committee. The Company Secretaries will ensure that all appointments are properly
made; all the necessary information is obtained as well as all legal and regulatory obligations are met.
Any appointment of a new Director to the Board or Board Committee is recommended by Nomination
Committee for consideration and approval by the Board. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office at each Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”). A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. The Articles of Association also provide
that all directors shall retire at least once in three years.
Directors who are appointed by the Board during the financial year are subject to re-election by the shareholders
at the next AGM held following their appointments. The Company complies with Section 129 (6) of the
Company Act, 1965, which states that a Director who is over 70 years of age shall retire at every AGM and
may offer himself for re-appointment to hold office until the Company’s next AGM. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for recommending to the Board those Directors who are eligible for re-election/re-appointment.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (cont’d)
2.2

Develop, maintain and review criteria for recruitment processes and annual assessment of Directors
(cont’d)
Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a Diversity Policy for the Board as well as the employees of the Group. The Board
values, respects and leverages the unique contributions of people with diverse backgrounds, experiences,
ethnicity, gender, age and perspectives to provide exceptional customer service to an equally diverse
community.

2.3

Remuneration policies and procedures
Its responsibilities include reviewing and recommending the remuneration structure and policy for Executive
Directors and key management personnel based on individual performance against the Group’s objectives
and contribution to the corporate strategy. The remuneration packages should be sufficiently attractive and
be able to retain the Executive and key management personnel needed to run the Company successfully.
The members of the Remuneration Committee met once for year 2015 and the record of attendance are as
follows:Designation

Attendance

Low Kim Leng
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

1/1

Toh Hong Chye

Executive Director

1/1

The Directors’ fees are subject to the approval of shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
(AGM). The aggregate remuneration of Directors of the Company during the financial year are as follows:-

Salaries
& other
Emoluments
RM
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Total

Company
and
Subsidiary

Company

Subsidiary

Fees
RM

Total
RM

Salaries
& other
Emoluments
RM

Total
RM

336,620

–

336,620

415,000

751,620

12,000

150,000

162,000

10,984

172,984

348,620

150,000

498,620

425,984

924,604
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Members

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Nomination Committee will assess the diversity-related objectives established by the Board and review
the progress on an annual basis and report it assessment to the Board and make recommendations as
appropriate.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (cont’d)
2.3

Remuneration policies and procedures (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Range of remuneration per annum

Non-Executive

Below RM50,000

–

1

RM 50,001- RM100,000

–

2

RM100,001- RM150,000

–

–

RM150,001- RM200,000

1

–

RM200,001- RM250,000

1

–

RM250,001- RM300,000

–

–

RM300,001- RM350,000

1

–

The Board as a whole (the individual concerned abstained in deliberation of their own remuneration) determines
the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

REINFORCE OF INDEPENDENCE
3.1

Annual Assessment of Independence
The Board has conducted an assessment on the Independent Directors and the Independent Director who
exceeds cumulative term of nine years shall seek for shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting
for continuity in serving the Board.

Annual Report 2015
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Number of Directors
Executive

The Independent Directors play a crucial role in exercising independent judgment and objective participation
in the proceedings and decision making process of the Board. The Board is satisfied that the current Board
composition fairly reflects the interests of minority shareholders.
3.2	Tenure of Independent Directors
In line with the MCCG 2012, the tenure of an independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of
nine years. However, an independent Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the Director’s
re-designation as a non-independent Director. In exceptional cases and subject to assessment by the
Nomination Committee, the Board may recommend for an independent Director who has served a consecutive
or cumulative term of nine years to remain as an independent Director subject to shareholders’ approval.
3.3

Separation of positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
There is a clear division of responsibilities at the head of the Group to ensure a balance of authority and
power. The Board is led by Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt, an Independent Non-Executive Chairman. The executive
management of the Group was led by Mr Tan Fie Jen, the Acting Managing Director who was re-designated
on 14 April 2014.

3.4

Board Composition and Balance
In year 2015, the Board of Directors comprises six (6) Members, of whom one (1) Managing Director, two
(2) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. A brief profile of each Director is
presented in this Annual Report.
There is also a balance in the Board with the presence of Independent Non-Executive Directors possessing
the caliber necessary to assist in Board decisions. The Board comprises professionals drawn from various
backgrounds in business, finance, technical and legal which relevant to the direction and objectives of the
Group.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

FOSTER COMMITMENT
4.1	Time Commitment
Five (5) Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Set out below is the
record of attendance of the Board Member:Designation

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Attendance
5/5

Tan Fie Jen

Acting Managing Director

5/5

Toh Hong Chye

Executive Director

5/5

Ong Chooi Lee

Executive Director

5/5

Low Kim Leng

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Yeong Siew Lee

Independent Non-Executive Director

4/5

The Board members are required to notify the Board’s Chairman prior to their acceptance of new directorships
in other companies, which must not exceeded 5 directorships in public listed companies.
4.2

Directors’ training

Name of courses
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

FIDE Forum Group on Insurance
Companies Bill
FIDE Forum Focus Group - Moving forward for the Insurance and Takaful
Industries
KPMG/Wong & Partners - “Trouble in the Boardroom?” Seminar
Actuarial Training for Board of Directors
FIDE Forum - 2015 Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration Study
Audit Oversight Board - Conversation with Audit Committees
Goods and Services Tax (GST) - Review and planning
Risk Management and Internal Control : Workshop for Audit Committee
member
Millionaire Investor Program
Corporate Governance Breakfast Series with Directors - Bringing the Best
Out in Boardrooms
FIDE Forum - Board Leading Change : Organisational transformation
strategy as key to sustainable growth in challenging times
Interplay Between CG, NFI and Investment Decision – What Boards of
Listed Companies Need To Know
Corporate Board Leadership
Anti - Money Laundering compliance culture briefing
Foreign Exchange Administration (FEA) Rules - Changes affecting FEA
Rules
GST Post Implementation11 June 2015

Date
4 February 2015
6 February 2015
4 March 2015
5 March 2015
8 March 2015
6 May 2015
7 May 2015
10 June 2015
11 June 2015
19 June 2015
31 July 2015
18 August 2015
19 August 2015
3 December 2015
3 December 2015
3 December 2015
16 December 2015

The Company Secretaries circulate the relevant guidelines on statutory and regulatory requirements from
time to time for the Board’s reference and brief the Board quarterly on these updates at Board meetings.
The External Auditors also briefed the Board members on any changes to the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards that affect the Group’s financial statements during the year.
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The directors are aware of their duties to undergo appropriate trainings from time to time so as to ensure that
they are equipped to carry out their duties effectively. All the Directors have attended various trainings as a
continuous effort to enhance management skills during the financial year under review and the list of courses
attended by the Directors are stated below:-

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Directors

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
5.1

Compliance with applicable financial reporting standards

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Board strives to provide and present a balanced and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial
performance and prospects for every financial year, primarily through the annual financial statements, quarterly
announcements of results to shareholders, as well as the Chairman’s Statement and Business Operations
Review in the annual report. The Board is assisted by the Audit and Risk Management Committee to oversee
the Group’s financial reporting processes and the quality of its financial reporting.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists majority of non-executive Directors and number at least
three (3) in total. The Audit and Risk Management Committee works closely with the external and internal
auditors and maintains a transparent professional relationship with them. The composition, terms of reference,
duties and responsibilities and other information of Audit and Risk Management Committee are set out on
page 15 in this Annual Report.
5.2

Assessment of sustainability and independence of external auditors
The Board ensures that there are formal and transparent arrangements for the achievement of objectives and
maintenance of professional relationship with external auditors. The external auditors have full access to the
books and records of the Group at all times.
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From time to time, the external auditors highlight and update the Board and Audit and Risk Management
Committee on matters that require their attention.
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The Audit and Risk Management Committee has received an annual written confirmation of the external
auditors’ independence in accordance with its firm’s requirements and the provisions of the By-Laws on
Professional Independence of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Messrs UHY was appointed as the
external auditors of the Company on 25 June 2012.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviewed the effectiveness and competence of the external
auditor on the qualifications, expertise and the adequacy of staffing/ resources provided by the external
auditors and was satisfied on the performance and independence of Messrs UHY as the external auditors of
the Company.
The Board, based on recommendation by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, recommended the
re-appointment of the external auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The provision of non-audit services will be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee to ensure
that such services do not impair the external auditors’ independence or objectivity. The external auditors
provide mainly audit-related services to the Company.
During the financial year under review, the amount of non-audit fees paid out or payable to the external
auditors of the Group is RM36,624.

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS
6.1

Sound framework to manage risks
The Board has the ultimate responsibility for reviewing the Company’s risks, approving the risk management
framework and policy and overseeing the Company’s strategic risk management and internal control framework.
The Company has in place an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks that
may affect the achievement of the business objectives of the Group. The Board through the Audit and Risk
Management Committee reviews the key risks identified on a regular basis to ensure proper management of
risks and that measures are taken to mitigate any weaknesses in the control environment.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS (Cont’d)
6.2

Internal audit function
The Board has established an internal audit function within the Company, which is led by the in-house Internal
Auditor who works together with an out-sourced Internal Auditor, SF Chang Corporate Services Sdn Bhd,
who reports directly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
An annual internal audit plan covering the proposed audit scope is presented to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee for approval. An internal audit report containing the audit findings together with recommendations
for improvement are presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis, with
follow-up audits performed to ensure the Management’s action plans are carried out accordingly.

ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE
7.1

Corporate Disclosure Policy
Information Disclosure
The Board has in place a policy to ensure disclosure of information is in accordance with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Requirements and other applicable laws.

Investor Relations
The Investor Relations Policy was reviewed and revised by the Board regularly and is designed to be both
proactive and interactive and is driven by the following principles:•
•
•
•
•
•

To report its financial results and material developments to Bursa Securities, its shareholders and other
stakeholders;
Communicate only through its designated spokespersons;
Use its website as an additional primary communication channel;
Address reports and rumours (as queried by Bursa Securities) so as to avoid unnecessary speculations
in its securities;
Reasonable access to analysts and the media to help them have informed opinions of the Company,
but will not seek to influence those opinions;
Endeavour to meet with its major shareholders at least once in each fiscal year as part of its on-going
programme to inform and obtain feedback on the Company.

While the Company endeavours to provide as much information as possible to its shareholders and
stakeholders, it is also be wary of the legal and regulatory framework governing the release of material
and price-sensitive information. The Company takes into account the prevailing legislative restrictions and
requirements as well as the investors’ needs for timely release of price sensitive information such as financial
performance results and statements, material acquisitions, significant corporate proposals as well as other
significant corporate events when releasing such information.

•
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7.2	Leverage on information technology for effective dissemination of information

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Details of the Company’s internal control system and framework as set out in the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control together with Audit and Risk Management Committee Report of this annual
report.

Corporate Governance Statement
– continued

ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE (Cont’d)
7.2	Leverage on information technology for effective dissemination of information (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Shareholders and other interested parties may contact the Acting Managing Director, to address any concerns
by writing or via telephone or facsimile as follows:-

Annual Report 2015
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Address
:
			
			
			
			
Email		
:
Telephone
:
Facsimile
:

SerSol Berhad
1-40-2, Menara Bangkok Bank
Berjaya Central Bank
No.105 Jalan Ampang
50450 Kuala Lumpur
ssms@sersol.com.my
03-2181 3993
03-2181 6688

STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS
8.1	Encourage shareholder participation at general meetings
It has also been the Company’s practice to send the Notice of the AGM and related papers to shareholders at
least twenty-one (21) clear days before the meeting. The date, venue and time of these meetings are determined
to provide the maximum opportunity for as many shareholders as possible to attend and participate either
in person, by corporate representative or by proxy.
8.2	Encourage Poll Voting
All resolutions put forth for shareholders’ approval at the Twelfth Annual General Meeting held on 15 May
2015 were voted by a show of hands.
The Board is of the opinion that with the current level of shareholders’ attendance at general meetings, voting
by way of a show of hands continues to be efficient. During the general meetings, the Chairman of the meeting
will remind all members present about their right to demand for a poll in accordance with the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association in voting on any resolutions.
In view of the enhancement of the disclosure and corporate governance, the Company will adhere to the
requirement for poll voting for any resolutions at the General Meetings to be held after the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
8.3	Effective Communication and Proactive Engagement
The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with individual shareholders and investors.
Shareholders are given opportunity to seek clarification on any matter pertaining to the business activities
and financial performance.
The Group recognises the importance of keeping shareholders and investors informed of the Group’s business
and corporate developments. Such information is disseminated via the Group’s annual report, circulars to
shareholders, quarterly financial results and the various announcements made from time to time. The Group’s
website is www.sersol.com.my and shareholders as well as members of the public are invited to access for
the latest information of the Group.
The Group has established a Corporate Disclosure Policy to ensure clear, accurate and complete disclosures
of material information to public investors.

REPORT OF

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Member and Attendance
The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises the following members and details of attendance at meetings
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:Designation

Attendance

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

5/5

Low Kim Leng

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Yeong Siew Lee

Independent Non-Executive Director

4/5

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Composition
The Committee shall be appointed from amongst the Board and shall comprise at least three (3) members, all must
be Non-Executive Directors with a majority of whom shall be Independent Directors.
At least one member of the audit and risk management committee:must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or

(ii)

if he/she is not a member of the Malaysia Institute of Accountants, he must have at least 3 years’ working
experience and-

(iii)

a.

he/she must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First Schedule of the Accountants
Act 1967; or

b.

he/she must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the First
Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or

fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa
Securities”).

No Alternate Director shall be appointed as a member of the Committee. In the event of any vacancy with the result
that the number of members is reduced to below three, the vacancy must be filled within 3 months.
The Board of Directors must review the term of office and performance of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
and each of its members at least once every 3 years to determine whether the Audit and Risk Management Committee
and members have carried out their duties in accordance with the terms of reference.
Chairman of Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Chairman, who shall be elected by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, must be an Independent
Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board. In the absence of the Chairman, the members present shall elect
a Chairman for the meeting from amongst themselves.
Secretary
The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible, in conjunction with the
Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and circulating it prior to each meeting.
The Secretary shall also be responsible for keeping the minutes of meetings of the Committee and circulating them
to the Committee Members.
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(i)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Members

Report of Audit and Risk Management Committee
– continued

TERMS OF REFERENCE (Cont’d)
Meeting
Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times a year. The quorum for a meeting shall be two (2) members,
provided that the majority of members present at the meeting shall be Independent Directors.
The Committee may conduct its meeting to include participation thereat by any member or invitee via video or
teleconferencing or any other means of audio or audio – visual communications.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

All resolutions of the Committee shall be adopted by a simple majority vote, each member having one vote. In case
of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

Annual Report 2015
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The external auditors have the right to appear at any meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and
shall appear before the Committee when required to do so by the Committee. The external auditors may also request
a meeting if they consider it necessary. However, at least twice a year, the Committee shall meet with the external
and/or internal auditors without any Executive Board members and employees present.
A resolution in writing, signed by all the members of the Committee, shall be as effectual as if it has been passed
at a meeting of the Committee duly convened and held. Any such resolution may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more Committee members.
Rights
The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
have to resources which it needs to perform its duties;
have full and unrestricted access to any information which it requires in the course of performing its duties;
have unrestricted access to the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer;
have direct communication channels with the external auditors and internal auditors (if any);
be to obtain independent professional or other advice in the performance of its duties at the cost of the
Company; and
be able to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend its meetings if necessary.

Duties
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee shall include the following:
Financial Reporting and Compliance
(1)

Review Financial Statements:
(a)

Monitor and review with appropriate officers of the Group and the external auditors, the annual, interim
and any other related formal financial statements and announcements of the Group prior to approval
of the Board and public release.

(b)

Discuss among the Committee members, without the presence of the Management or the external
auditors if deemed necessary, the financial information obtained.

(c)

Discuss the impact of any proposed changes in accounting principles on future financial statements.

(2)

Review Other Accounting, Audit and Financial Matters: Review such other matters in relation to the accounting,
auditing and financial reporting practices and procedures of the Group.

(3)

Review Related Party Transactions, if any: Review material related party transaction and conflict of interest
situations that may arise within the Group including transaction, procedure or cause of conduct that raises
question of management integrity and recurrent related party transactions

Report of Audit and Risk Management Committee
– continued

TERMS OF REFERENCE (Cont’d)
Duties (cont’d)
Risk Management and Internal Control
Review Systems of Risk Management: Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
process to identify key organisational risks and the systems or processes in place to monitor and manage
these risks.

(5)

Review Systems of Internal Controls: Review the effectiveness, adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal
controls including information technology security and control and to assist management in setting up the
appropriate procedures and internal controls.

(6)

Review Systems and/or Processes to manage fraud: Review the procedures in place by management to
prevent and detect fraud including cyber fraud.

(7)

Review Statement on Internal Control: Review with the external auditors, the Group’s Statement on Internal
Control for inclusion in the Annual Report, where applicable.

Internal Audit
Review of the Internal Audit Function: Review the internal audit department to ensure its activities are performed
independently and due professional care.

(9)

Review Internal Audit Plans: Review, evaluate and approve the plans for and adequacy of the scope of their
audit activities/programmes including the adequacy of competency and resources to carry out its function
and to monitor the implementation of the internal audit activities/programmes to ensure sufficient scope is
covered during the audit.

(10)

Review Internal Audit Reports: Review with members of senior management of the Group, any periodic reports
of the audit activities, key findings and recommendations as well as the recommended course of actions to
be taken by the management, management’s response to the recommendations and ensure that appropriate
action is taken on their recommendations.

(11)

Review Internal Audit Function: Monitor effectiveness and review the performance of members of the internal
audit function and provide appraisals of their performance.

(12)

Approve the appointment or termination of key personnel or senior Internal Audit members.

External Audit
(13)

Nomination, Resignation and Dismissal of External Auditors: Recommend to the Board annually and at
other appropriate times, and through the Chairman, to the shareholders for approval at the annual general
meeting, the firm to be retained or re-appointed as the Group’s external auditors, the terms of engagement
and remuneration.

(14)

Review suitability and Independence of External Auditors: Review the information provided by management
and the external auditors relating to the independence of such firm, including whether they are comply with
Malaysian regulations and ethical guidance relating to rotation of audit partner, the level of fees that the Group
pays in proportion to the overall fee income of the firm. Assure that representatives of the external audit firm
have no family, financial, employment or any other business relationship with the Group.

(15)

The Committee shall ensure that the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor comply with
the policy on the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor to ensure that the objectivity and
independence of the audit firm are not impaired.

(16)

Review External Audit Plans: Review, in consultation with the external auditors their plans for, and the scope
and cost effectiveness of their annual audit and other examinations, prior to the commencement of such
activities.
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(8)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(4)

Report of Audit and Risk Management Committee
– continued

TERMS OF REFERENCE (Cont’d)
Duties (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

External Audit (cont’d)
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(17)

Conduct of External Audits: Review the assistance given by the Group and the Group’s employees to the
external auditors and ensure co-ordination where more than one (1) audit firm is involved and between the
external and internal auditors.

(18)

Review the External Auditors’ representations on their Quality Control Procedures and steps taken by the
auditor to respond to changes in regulatory and other requisite requirements.

(19)

Review External Audit Results: Review with the external auditors, their findings and the report of their annual
audit, or proposed report of their annual audit, the accompanying management letter and response, the
report of their reviews of the Group’s interim financials, and the problems and reservations arising, including
significant audit adjustments, if any.

(20)

Review Recommendations of External Audit: Review the recommendations made by the external auditors and
such other matters including recommending the appropriate course of action to be taken by the management
and monitoring the implementation of the course of action

Share Schemes
(21)

Verify shares and/or share options allocated: Review the verification on the allocation of shares or share options
to the Group’s eligible employees and eligible executives in accordance with allocation criteria established
pursuant to the by-laws governing the relevant share scheme, on a quarterly basis, where applicable.

Whistleblowing
(22)

Review the procedures that the Group has implemented to address allegations made by whistleblowers, to
ensure that there is proportionate and independent investigation of such allegations and that appropriate
follow-up action is taken and brought to the attention of the Committee, where necessary.

Coordination
(23)

Ensure appropriate coordination between the audit plans of the Company’s external auditors and the scope
of the Group’s internal audit programme.

Activities
During the financial year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has conducted its activities in accordance
with its existing Terms of Reference, which include:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Quarterly meetings to review the quarterly results.
Reviewed Risk Management reports and Internal Audit reports with Internal Auditors to assess the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls in the areas audited.
Discussed the annual audited financial statements with the external auditors as well as their findings and
recommendations.
Reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management framework and internal control system of the Group.
Assessed the adequacy of scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function.
Conducted three (3) meetings with the external auditors, and two (2) meetings with the internal auditors
without the presence of the Management.
Reviewed and considered any related party transaction that may or have arisen within the Group.

Statement of Verification on Allocation of Options pursuant to Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”)
During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, there were no options granted pursuant to the SIS.

report of

nomination committee

Member and Attendance
The Nomination Committee comprises the following members and details of attendance at meetings held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:Designation

Attendance

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

1/1

Low Kim Leng

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

Yeong Siew Lee

Independent Non-Executive Director

1/1

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Composition
The Board of Directors shall elect the Committee members from amongst themselves, comprising exclusively of
Non-Executive Directors, a majority of whom are Independent and number at least 3 in total.
Chairman of Nomination Committee
The Chairman of the Committee shall be Senior Independent Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board. In the
absence of the Chairman, the members present shall elect a Chairman for the meeting from amongst themselves.

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible, in conjunction with the
Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and circulating it prior to each meeting.
The Secretary shall also be responsible for keeping the minutes of meetings of the Committee and circulating them
to the Committee Members.
Meeting
The Committee may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate the meetings at
least once a year or more frequent as deemed necessary. The Chairman may call for additional meetings at any time
at the Chairman’s discretion. The quorum for all meetings of the Committee shall not be less than two (2) members.
The Committee may conduct its meeting to include participation thereat by any member or invitee via video or
teleconferencing or any other means of audio or audio – visual communications.
All resolutions of the Committee shall be adopted by a simple majority vote, each member having one vote. In case
of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.
A resolution in writing, signed by all the members of the Committee, shall be as effectual as if it has been passed
at a meeting of the Committee duly convened and held. Any such resolution may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more Committee members.
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Secretary

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Members

Report of Nomination Committee
– continued

TERMS OF REFERENCE (cont’d)
Rights

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Nomination Committee in accordance with a procedure or process to be determined by the Board of Directors
and at the expense of the Company:-

Annual Report 2015
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(i)

shall annually review the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies
which non-executive and executive directors should have;

(ii)

shall assess on an annual basis, the effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole, the committees of
the Board and for assessing the contribution of each individual director; and

(iii)

shall be entitled to the services of the Company Secretary who must ensure that all appointments are properly
made that all necessary information is obtained from the directors, both for the Company’s own records and
for the purposes of meeting statutory obligations, as well as obligations arising from the ACE Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) or other regulatory requirements.

The ultimate decision on the appointment of directors to the Board is the responsibility of the Board of Directors or
the shareholders after due consideration of the recommendations of the Nomination Committee.
The Committee is authorised by the Board to seek appropriate professional advice inside and outside the Group
as and when it considers this necessary, at the expense of the Company.
Duties
The duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:(a)

Identify and recommend to the Board, candidates for directorships of the Company to be filled by the
shareholders or the Board and to review the Board’s policies for the selection of Board members.

(b)

Develop, maintain and review the criteria to be used in the recruitment process and annual assessment of
Directors.

(c)

Recommend to the Board, directors to fill the seats on Board Committees.

(d)

Facilitate Board induction programme for newly appointed Directors.

(e)

Ensure an appropriate framework and plan for Board succession for the Group.

(f)

Review annually the required mix of skills and experience of the Board, including the core competencies
which directors should bring to the Board.

(g)

Evaluate the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees (including its size and composition) and the
contribution of each individual director including his time commitment, character, experience and integrity.
All assessments and evaluations carried out by the Committee in the discharge of all its functions shall be
properly documented.

(h)

Assess annually the effectiveness and performance of the Executive Directors.

(i)

Assess annually the independence of its independent directors.

(j)

Review the character, experience, integrity, competence and time to effectively discharge the roles of chief
executive and chief financial officer.

Report of Nomination Committee
– continued

TERMS OF REFERENCE (cont’d)
Duties (cont’d)
Recommend to Board the Company’s gender diversity policies, targets and discuss measures taken to meet
those targets.

(l)

Recommend to Board protocol for accepting new directorships.

(m)

Determine appropriate training for Directors, review the fulfillment of such training, and disclose details in the
annual report as appropriate, in accordance with Bursa Securities’s guidelines on Continuing Education.

(n)

Consider and recommend the Directors for re-election/re-appointment at each Annual General Meeting.

(o)

Review proposals for the appointment of the chief executive of the Company and make recommendations
to the respective Board for approval.

(p)

Require that the appointment of all key senior management personnel of the Group who will be reporting
directly to the chief executive of the Company be notified to the Committee before such appointment(s) take
place.

(q)

Review the succession management plans of the Group to ensure smooth transitions.

Activities

a)

Reviewed the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, assessed the effectiveness of the
Board of Directors as a whole, the committees of the Board, the contribution of each individual director and
the independence of the independent directors.

b)

Considered and recommended to the Board the Directors for re-election/re-appointment at forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.
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During the financial year, the Nomination Committee has conducted its activities in accordance with its existing
Terms of Reference, which include:

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(k)

additional listing requirements

compliance information

To comply with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the following additional information is provided:

1)	UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS
The Company had allotted 19,527,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company to independent
third party investor(s).

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The proceeds from Private Placement have been fully utilised within the expected timeframe of utilisation.

2)

There were no share buy backs during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

3)	OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES EXERCISED
Warrants
Since the last financial year end, there was no warrants have been exercised and converted to ordinary share
capital. Total 96,151,000 warrants remained unexercised as at 31 December 2015.

•
22
•
Annual Report 2015

SHARE BUYBACKS

Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”)
During the financial year end under review, there were no options granted pursuant to SIS.
The Company does not have any options or convertible securities in issue or exercisable during the financial
year ended 31 December 2015.

4)

DEPOSITORY RECEIPT PROGRAMME
The Company did not sponsor any depository receipt programme during the financial year ended 31 December
2015.

5)

SANCTIONS AND / OR PENALTIES
The Company and its subsidiaries, Directors and management have not been imposed with any sanctions
and/or penalties by any regulatory bodies.

6)	NON-AUDIT FEES
The total non-audit fees paid and payable to the Group’s external auditors during the financial year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to RM36,624.

7)	PROFIT ESTIMATE, FORECAST OR PROJECTION
The Company did not release any profit estimate, forecast or projection for the financial year ended 31
December 2015.

Additional Listing Requirements Compliance Information
– continued

8)	PROFIT GUARANTEE
No profit guarantee was given by the Company in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

9)

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There were no material contracts by the Company and its subsidiaries involving Directors’ and major
shareholders’ interest.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Board, whilst pursuing the business objectives of growth in enhancing shareholder value, is also cognizant
of its corporate social responsibilities (“CSR”) and the importance of the contribution it can make in respect
thereof, particularly towards improving the workplace and the environment.
The Group will always inspect and monitor the workplace to ensure that a health and safety working environment
is provided to the workers. We also continuously encourage employees to recycle and/or reduce wastage on
the consumption of raw materials so that waste disposals are kept to minimum.
We also believe that value will be created when there is proper development and utilization of our human
resources. Personal development is important and employee are encouraged to improve their knowledge
through attendance at relevant seminars and workshops.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

10)
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statement on

risk management and internal control

INTRODUCTION
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) requires that a listed company shall maintain a sound
system of internal control to safeguard its shareholders’ investments and its assets. The Board is pleased to present
its Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 which is
made pursuant to paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Listing Requirements Bursa Securities and in accordance with the
“Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control (Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers)”.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
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The Board of Sersol Berhad (“SB”) acknowledges the importance of a sound system of internal controls and risk
management framework and is dedicated to affirm its overall responsibility for the group’s system of internal controls.
The Board’s responsibility includes the establishment of appropriate control environment and framework and at
the same time conduct review on its adequacy, integrity and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and management information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules,
directives and guidelines.
Nevertheless, the Board is aware that due to the limitations inherent in any such systems, the internal control
established can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement, operational
failures, fraud or loss, as it is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objective.
The Board has established appropriate control structure and process for identifying, evaluating, monitoring, and
managing significant risks that may affect the achievement of business objectives. The control structure and process
are updated and reviewed from time to time to suit the changes in the business environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Board is aware that an effective risk management system is an integral part of the daily operations of the
Group to ensure success in our risk-taking activities. In this regards, the management of SB has embedded risk
management as part of its business practice to ensure that the Group’s assets are well-protected and shareholders’
value enhanced.
Risk Management Committee (RMC) will assist in the facilitation of the risk management workshop as a process
of monitoring, identification and assessment of risk. The workshop also include the proposed and implementation
of appropriate systems to manage risks. The RMC, with the assistance of head of department responsible of
implementing and maintaining the appropriate risk management framework to achieve the following objectives:•
•
•

Communicate the vision, role, direction and priorities to all employees and key stakeholders.
Ensuring that key risks to the Group’s business are identified and evaluated, and responses are developed
to mitigate these risks.
Create a risk-aware culture and building the necessary knowledge for risk management at every level of
management.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Group has adopted a structured and systematic risk assessment,
monitoring and reporting framework. The Group also fostered a culture of continuous improvement in risk
management through risk review meetings.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
– continued

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The internal control environment and processes are periodically reviewed by internal audit function who report
accordingly to the Audit Committee to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control procedures
throughout the Group.
The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional firm, S F Chang Corporate Services
Sdn Bhd. The outsourced Internal Auditors supports the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”), and
by extension, the Board, by providing an independent assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of
internal control.

OTHER KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board and Management have established a process of continuously enhancing the system of internal controls
as and when there are changes to the business environment or regulatory guidelines. The following internal control
components work together to assist the Board in maintaining an adequate control environment to support the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives:
•
•

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the
annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and reported to the Board that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the statement is inconsistent with their understanding
of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system.

CONCLUSION
For the financial year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement, the Board is of the opinion that
the Group’s risk management and internal control system currently in place is adequate and effective to safeguard
the Group’s interests and assets. The Board has also received assurance from the Acting Managing Director and
CFO that the Group’s risk management and internal control system, in all material aspects, is operating adequately
and effectively.
The Board is committed towards maintaining a sound system of internal controls throughout the Group. The Board
recognizes the fact that the system of internal controls and risk management practice should evolve with the ever
changing and challenging business environment in order to support the Group’s operation. The Board will put in
place appropriate action plans to rectify potential weaknesses and improve the system of internal control as when
is necessary.
This statement is made in accordance with a minute of the Board dated 28 March 2016.
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•
•

Clearly defined lines of reporting, responsibilities and delegation of authority within Group.
Internal control policies, manuals, procedures and work instruction are documented based on the guidelines
of the International Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) accreditation programme. Furthermore, ISO audits
are conducted internally by an in-house committee established and by external parties during the financial
year.
Regular management meetings are held where information covering operational performances is reviewed.
Regular training programs are being attended by employees with the objective of enhancing their knowledge
and competency.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The internal audit report is presented to AC on its activities, significant audit results or findings and the necessary
recommendations or actions needed to be taken by the management to rectify highlighted issues. The cost incurred
by the Group for the internal audit function during the financial year was RM87,243.82.

statement of

directors’ responsibility

In respect of the Audited Financial Statements

Directors are legally required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the results of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors of the Company have:
•
adopted suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
•
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
•
ensured applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and
•
prepared the financial statement on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Company will continue in business.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group and of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act. 1965 and applicable approved accounting standards. The Directors
are also responsible for the assets of the Group and of the Company and, hence, for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’

REPORT

The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company consist of the provision of management services and investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
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Financial Results
				
Group
				RM

Company
RM

Loss for the financial year				

1,844,140

94,694

Attributable to:			
Owners of the Parent				
Non-controlling interests				

1,839,086
5,054

94,694
–

				

1,844,140

94,694

Reserves and Provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed
in the financial statements.

Dividend
There was no dividend proposed, declared or paid by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.
The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year.

Issue of Shares and Debentures
During the current financial year, the Company issued:
(i)

19,527,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each pursuant to private placement at an issue price of RM0.25
per placement share; and

(ii)

550,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each for cash arising from the exercise of options under its Share
Issuance Scheme at an option price of RM0.29 per ordinary share.

The new ordinary shares issued during the current financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company.
There was no issuance of debentures during the current financial year.

Directors’ Report
– continued

Warrants
The warrants were constituted under the Deed Poll dated 23 February 2013 as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial
statements.
As at 31 December 2015, the total numbers of warrants that remain unexercised were 96,151,000.

Options Granted Over Unissued Shares

On 23 February 2013, the Company’s shareholders approved the establishment of a SIS of not more than 30% of
the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) at any point of time during the
duration of the SIS to eligible Directors and employees of the Group.
The salient features and other terms of the SIS are disclosed in the Note 24 to the financial statements.
As at 31 December 2015, the options offered to take up unissued ordinary shares of RM0.10 each and the balance
of options as follows:
	Number of options over ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
	Exercise
At			At
Date of offer
price
1.1.2015
Granted 	Exercised
31.12.2015
RM0.29

31,540,000

–

(550,000)

30,990,000

		

31,540,000

–

(550,000)

30,990,000

Directors
The Directors in office since the date of the last report are:
Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt
Tan Fie Jen
Toh Hong Chye
Ong Chooi Lee
Low Kim Leng
Yeong Siew Lee
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No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year apart
from the issue of options pursuant to the Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”).

Directors’ Report
– continued

Directors’ Interests

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and options over shares of the Company or its related corporations
of those who were Directors at the financial year end (including their spouses or children) according to the Register
of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:
	Number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
		At			At
		 1.1.2015
Bought
Sold
31.12.2015
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Interests in the Company
Direct interests
Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt		
Tan Fie Jen		
Toh Hong Chye		
Ong Chooi Lee		

170,000
745,648
1,349
250,000

–
–
–
–

–
(745,600)
–
–

170,000
48
1,349
250,000

Indirect interests
Tan Fie Jen*		

7,440,200

–

(2,140,200)

5,300,000

	Number of Warrants
		At
Granted/	Exercised/
		 1.1.2015
Bought
Sold

At
31.12.2015

Interests in the Company
Direct interests
Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt		
Tan Fie Jen		
Toh Hong Chye		
Ong Chooi Lee		

310,000
372,824
1,349
250,000

–
–
–
–

–
(122,800)
–
–

310,000
250,024
1,349
250,000

Indirect interests
Tan Fie Jen*		

2,482,100

–

(1,482,100)

1,000,000

	Number of Options over ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
		At
Granted/	Exercised/
At
		 1.1.2015
Bought
Sold
31.12.2015
Interests in the Company
Direct interests
Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt		
Tan Fie Jen		
Toh Hong Chye		
Ong Chooi Lee		
Low Kim Leng		
*

1,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
1,000,000

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

1,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
1,000,000

Deemed interest in shares and warrants held by Consolingrow Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 6A of the
Companies Act, 1965.

By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Mr. Tan Fie Jen is also deemed interested in the shares of
all the subsidiary companies during the financial year to the extent that the Company has an interest under Section
6A of the Companies Act, 1965.
None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or
its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ Report
– continued

Directors’ Benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable
by Directors as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related
corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the
Director has a substantial financial interest, other than certain Directors who have significant financial interests in
companies which traded with certain companies in the Group in the ordinary course of business as disclosed in
Note 29(b) to the financial statements.

Other Statutory Information
(a)

Before the statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

(ii)

(c)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting
records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be
expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful
debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent;
or

(ii)

which would render the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company misleading; or

(iii)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading; or

(iv)

which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.
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(b)

to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off
and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object was
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Report
– continued

Other Statutory Information (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(d)
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In the opinion of the Directors:
(i)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the
Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

(ii)

the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

(iii)

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of
the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors
The Auditors, Messrs UHY, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28 March 2016.

TOH HONG CHYE	TAN FIE JEN
KUALA LUMPUR

STATEMENT

BY DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, the undersigned, being two of the Directors of the Company, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors,
the financial statements set out on pages 36 to 96 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia
so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 December 2015
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
The supplementary information set out in Note 34 to the financial statements on page 97 have been compiled in
accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in
the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

TOH HONG CHYE	TAN FIE JEN
KUALA LUMPUR

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28 March 2016.
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DECLARATION

Pursuant To Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I, TOH HONG CHYE, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Sersol Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out in
pages 36 to 97 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and
by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in the
Federal Territory on 28 March 2016

)
)
)

		TOH HONG CHYE
Before me,
		   No. W 521
		 Mohan A.S. Maniam
		 Commissioner for Oaths
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STATUTORY

INDEPENDENT

AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SERSOL BERHAD

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Sersol Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2015 of the Group and of the Company, and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as
set out on pages 36 to 96.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and
fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as of 31 December 2015 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Independent Auditors’ Report
– continued

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the followings:
In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and its subsidiary companies of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)

We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of the subsidiary company of which
we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements.

(c)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with
the Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and
explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d)

The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies did not contain any qualification
or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

UHY
Firm Number: AF 1411
Chartered Accountants

CHONG HOU NIAN
Approved Number: 3105/11/16 (J)
Chartered Accountant
KUALA LUMPUR
28 March 2016
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The supplementary information set out in Note 34 on page 97 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and
Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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(a)

STATEMENTS of

FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Group
		2015
	Note
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiary
companies
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Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

4

8,725,341

9,026,470

145,202

–

5

–

–

7,119,859

7,119,859

		

8,725,341

9,026,470

7,265,061

7,119,859

3,622,680

3,197,882

–

–

120,392
5,257,530
395,989

–
4,131,569
226,903

–
–
213,039

–
–
66,468

Current assets
Inventories
6
Amount due from contract
customers
7
Trade receivables
8
Other receivables
9
Amount due from subsidiary
companies
10
Tax recoverable		
Deposits, cash and bank
balances
11

–
–

–
98,373

10,115,572
–

7,870,028
–

6,934,217

4,096,672

4,710,806

2,283,186

		

16,330,808

11,751,399

15,039,417

10,219,682

Total Assets		

25,056,149

20,777,869

22,304,478

17,339,541

Statements of Financial Position
– continued

Group
		2015
	Note
RM
EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

21,534,900
(4,350,909)

19,527,200
(5,617,008)

21,534,900
705,360

19,527,200
(2,233,496)

Equity attributable to
owners of the parent		
Non-controlling interests		

17,183,991
(4,564)

13,910,192
–

22,240,260
–

17,293,704
–

		

17,179,427

13,910,192

22,240,260

17,293,704

14
15

153,956
789,339

391,273
779,340

–
–

–
–

		

943,295

1,170,613

–

–

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

2,249,584
566,148
239,598
3,694,046
184,051

3,646,361
890,917
295,792
863,994
–

–
63,250
–
–
968

–
45,837
–
–
–

		

6,933,427

5,697,064

64,218

45,837

Total Liabilities		

7,876,722

6,867,677

64,218

45,837

Total Equity and Liabilities		

25,056,149

20,777,869

22,304,478

17,339,541

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current Liabilities
Trade payables
16
Other payables
17
Finance lease liabilities
14
Bank borrowing
18
Tax payable		

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

12
13

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Group
		2015
	Note
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Revenue
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Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

19

21,292,944

16,926,416

1,085,414

1,496,544

Cost of sales		

(15,871,426)

(13,164,299)

–

–

Gross profit		

5,421,518

3,762,117

1,085,414

1,496,544

Other income		

2,744,576

330,393

26,330

24,070

Administrative expenses		

(3,581,850)

(3,448,043)

(1,174,899)

(1,868,755)

Selling and distribution expenses		

(5,869,089)

(4,958,660)

–

–

Finance costs

20

(161,552)

(142,717)

(139)

(625)

Loss before tax

21

(1,446,397)

(4,456,910)

(63,294)

(348,766)

Taxation

22

(397,743)

10,064

(31,400)

–

Loss for the financial year		

(1,844,140)

(4,446,846)

(94,694)

(348,766)

Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Exchange translation differences		

71,635

101,973

–

–

Other comprehensive income
for the financial year		

71,635

101,973

–

–

Total comprehensive income
for the financial year		

(1,772,505)

(4,344,873)

(94,694)

(348,766)

Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
– continued

Group
		2015
	Note
RM

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

(1,839,086)
(5,054)

(4,444,476)
(2,370)

(94,694)
–

(348,766)
–

		

(1,844,140)

(4,446,846)

(94,694)

(348,766)

Total comprehensive
income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent		
Non-controlling interests		

(1,767,451)
(5,054)

(4,342,737)
(2,136)

(94,694)
–

(348,766)
–

		

(1,772,505)

(4,344,873)

(94,694)

(348,766)

(0.88)
(0.88)

(2.30)
(2.30)

Loss per share
Basic loss per share (sen)
Diluted loss per share (sen)

23(a)
23(b)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Loss for the financial
year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent		
Non-controlling interest		
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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–

–

–

–

(4,444,476)

(4,444,476)

(2,370)

(4,446,846)

CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

–
–
237,000
–
237,000

19,527,200

		

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year		

Transactions with owners:
Issue of ordinary shares
12
Disposal of a subsidiary company		

Total transaction with owners		

At 31 December 2014		

4,217,687

450,300

450,300
–

–

–

3,937,550

-–

–
–

(55,980)

(55,980)

(44,227)

–

–
–

101,739

101,739

(13,728,018)

–

–
–

(4,388,496)

55,980

13,910,192

687,300

687,300
–

(4,342,737)

101,739

–

39,960

–
39,960

(2,136)

234

13,910,192

727,260

687,300
39,960

(4,344,873)

101,973

Other comprehensive income for
the financial year:										
Realisation of revalution reserve		
–
–
(55,980)
–
55,980
–
–
–
Foreign exchange translation reserve		
–
–
–
101,739
–
101,739
234
101,973

Loss for the financial year		

Attributable to Owners of the Parent
	Non-distributable
					
Foreign
					Exchange			Non		Share
Share Revaluation	Translation Accumulated		
controlling	Total
		 Capital	Premium
Reserve
Reserve	Losses	Total
interests
equity
	Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Group
						
At 1 January 2014		
19,290,200
3,767,387
3,993,530
(145,966)
(9,339,522)
17,565,629
(37,824)
17,527,805

Annual Report 2015

STATEMENTS OF

–
–
–
–
2,007,700
–
2,007,700

21,534,900

Other comprehensive income for
the financial year:
Realisation of revaluation reserve		
Foreign exchange translation reserve		

		

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year		

Transactions with owners:
Issue of ordinary shares
12
Acquisition of a subsidiary company		

Total transaction with owners		

At 31 December 2015		

7,251,237

3,033,550

3,033,550
–

–

–

–
–

–

55,981
–
55,981
(1,783,105)
–
–
–
(15,511,123)

–
71,635
71,635
71,635
–
–
–
27,408

(55,981)
–
(55,981)
(55,981)

3,881,569

–

–
–

(1,839,086)

–

–
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–

17,183,991

5,041,250

5,041,250
–

(1,767,451)

71,635

–
71,635

(1,839,086)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Loss for the financial year		

(4,564)

490

–
490

(5,054)

–

–
–

(5,054)

17,179,427

5,041,740

5,041,250
490

(1,772,505)

71,635

–
71,635

(1,844,140)

Attributable to Owners of the Parent
	Non-distributable
					
Foreign
					Exchange			Non		Share
Share Revaluation	Translation Accumulated		
controlling	Total
		 Capital	Premium
Reserve
Reserve	Losses	Total
interests
equity
	Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Group
							
At 1 January 2015		
19,527,200
4,217,687
3,937,550
(44,227) (13,728,018)
13,910,192
–
13,910,192

Statements of Changes in Equity
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Statements of Changes in Equity
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	Non-distributable
		Share
Share
Accumulated	Total
		 Capital	Premium	Losses
equity
	Note
RM
RM
RM
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Company
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At 1 January 2014		

19,290,200

3,767,387

(6,102,417)

16,955,170

Loss for the financial year,
representing total
comprehensive income for
the financial year		

–

–

(348,766)

(348,766)

12

237,000

450,300

–

687,300

At 31 December 2014		

19,527,200

4,217,687

(6,451,183)

17,293,704

At 1 January 2015		

19,527,200

4,217,687

(6,451,183)

17,293,704

Loss for the financial year,
representing total
comprehensive income
for the financial year		

–

–

(94,694)

(94,694)

12

2,007,700

3,033,550

–

5,041,250

At 31 December 2015		

21,534,900

7,251,237

(6,545,877)

22,240,260

Transaction with owners:
Issue of ordinary shares,
representing total
transactions with owners

Transaction with owners:
Issue of ordinary shares,
representing total
transactions with owners

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Group
		2015
		RM
Cash flows from operating
activities
Loss before tax		

2014
RM

(1,446,397)

(4,456,910)

(63,294)

(348,766)

(1,000)
1,973,999

(8,050)
–

–
–

–
–

552,258

457,052

12,892

–

–

130,720

–

(1)

(8,000)

(56,525)

-

–

421,287
120,588
(187,487)

2,103,249
110,135
(161,988)

–
–
(125,414)

–
–
(126,546)

(2,103,249)

–

–

–

(31,259)

(2,385)

–

–

(10,333)

(109,037)

–

–

11,646
–

10,680
92

–
–

–
–

(707,947)

(1,982,967)

(175,816)

(475,313)

(357,724)

138,801

–

–

Change in working capital:
Inventories		
Amount due from contract
   customers 		
Trade receivables		
Other receivables		
Amount owing by subsidiary
   companies 		
Trade payables		
Other payables		

(120,392)
(1,501,080)
(163,944)

–
(1,629,565)
48,548

–
–
(146,571)

–
–
(12,835)

–
(1,481,995)
(334,510)

–
881,866
83,488

(2,245,544)
–
17,413

(5,102,524)
–
(145,999)

		

(3,959,645)

(476,862)

(2,374,702)

(5,261,358)

Cash used in operations		

(4,667,592)

(2,459,829)

(2,550,518)

(5,736,671)

Interest paid		
Tax refund		
Tax paid		

(120,588)
197,072
(303,855)

(110,135)
116,000
(23,880)

–
–
(30,432)

–
15,000
–

		

(227,371)

(18,015)

(30,432)

15,000

Net cash used in operating activities		

(4,894,963)

(2,477,844)

(2,580,950)

(5,721,671)
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Operating loss before
working capital changes		

2015
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Adjustments for:
Bad debts recovered		
Bad debts written off		
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment		
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of:
- Disposal of a subsidiary
company		
- Property, plant and
equipment		
Impairment loss on trade
receivables		
Interest expenses		
Interest income		
Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables		
Reversal of inventories
written down		
Unrealised gain on
foreign exchange		
Written off of:
- Inventories		
- Property, plant and equipment		

Company
2014
RM

Statements of Cash Flows
– continued
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		2015
	Note
RM
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Group

Company

2014
RM

2015
RM

161,988

125,414

126,546

(8,918)

–

–

(180,727)

(158,094)

–

–

–

1

56,525

–

–

28,868

(32,680)

126,547

687,300

5,041,250

687,300

–

–

–

(692,000)

–

–

(150,411)

–

–

4,743,298

(155,111)

5,041,250

687,300

(193,548)

(2,604,087)

2,427,620

(4,907,824)

3,232,678

5,828,470

2,283,186

7,191,010

201,041

8,295

–

–

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the financial year		

3,240,171

3,232,678

4,710,806

2,283,186

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the financial
year comprises:
Deposit, cash and bank balances		
Bank overdraft
18

6,934,217
(3,694,046)

4,096,672
(863,994)

4,710,806
–

2,283,186
–

		

3,240,171

3,232,678

4,710,806

2,283,186

Cash flows from Investing
Activities
Interest received		
187,487
Net cash outflows from
disposal of a subsidiary
company		–
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
4(b)
(237,370)
Proceeds from disposal of
investment in a subsidiary
company		–
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment		
8,000
Net cash (used in)/from
investing activities		

(41,883)

Cash flows from financing
activities
Proceeds from issuance of
shares
12
5,041,250
Proceeds from issuance of
shares to non-controlling
interests		
490
Repayment of bankers’
acceptance		–
Repayment of finance lease
liabilities		
(298,442)
Net cash from/(used in)
financing activities 		
Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the
financial year		
Effect of changes in
exchange rates		

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2014
RM

notes to the

financial statements

1.

Corporate Information
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on
the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The principal activities of the Company consist of the provision of management services and investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 5. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
The registered office of the Company is located at Lot 6.05 Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar
Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 28, Jalan Canggih 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang, 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Bahru.

2.

Basis of Preparation
(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, unless otherwise indicated in the significant accounting policies below.
Adoption of new and amended standards
During the financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted the following amendments to
MFRSs issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) that are mandatory for current
financial year:
Amendments to MFRS 119 Defined Benefits Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle
Adoption of above amendments to MFRSs did not have any significant impact on the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company.
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The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The corporate office of the Company is located at 1-40-2, Menara Bangkok Bank, Berjaya Central Bank,
No.105 Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

2.

Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group and the Company have not applied the following new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs
that have been issued by the MASB but are not yet effective for the Group and the Company:
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			Effective dates for
			
financial periods
			
beginning on or after
MFRS 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to MFRS 11
Accounting for Acquisitions
		  of Interests in Joint
		  Operations
Amendments to MFRS 101
Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to MFRS 116
Clarification of Acceptable
and MFRS 138	  Methods of Depreciation
		  and Amortisation
Amendments to MFRS 116
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and MFRS 141
Amendments to MFRS 127
Equity Method in Separate
		  Financial Statements
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle
Amendments to MFRS 10,
Investment Entities: Applying the
MFRS 12 and MFRS 128	  Consolidation Exception
MFRS 9
Financial Instruments (IFRS 9
		  issued by IASB in July 2014)
MFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
		 Customers
Amendments to MFRS 10
Sale or Contribution of Assets
and MFRS 128	  between an Investor and its
		  Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
To be announced

The Group and the Company intend to adopt the above MFRSs when they become effective.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

2.

Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
The initial application of the abovementioned MFRSs are not expected to have any significant impacts
on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company except as mentioned below:
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014)

The adoption of MFRS 9 will result in a change in accounting policy. The Group is currently examining
the financial impact of adopting MFRS 9.
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
MFRS 15 replaces MFRS 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 Construction Contracts and related IC Interpretations.
The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of this Standard. The Standard deals with revenue
recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s
contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability
to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The core principle in MFRS 15 is
that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
(b)

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s functional
currency and all values have been rounded to the nearest RM except when otherwise stated.
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MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and
fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are
required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. For financial
liabilities there were no changes to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes
in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss. MFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument
and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually use for risk management
purposes. Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared
under MFRS 139.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) replaces earlier versions of MFRS 9 and introduces a
package of improvements which includes a classification and measurement model, a single forward
looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model and a substantially reformed approach to hedge accounting.
MFRS 9 when effective will replace MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

2.

Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)
(c)

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumption
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(i)	Judgments
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There are no significant areas of critical judgment in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period are set out below:
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 4)
The Group regularly reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on
factors such as business plan and strategies, expected level of usage and future technological
developments. Future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase the recorded depreciation and
decrease the value of property, plant and equipment.
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances
and other deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note 15.
Inventories valuation
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group estimates the
net realisable value of inventories based on an assessment of expected sales prices. Demand
levels and pricing competition could change from time to time. If such factors result in an adverse
effect on the Group’s products, the Group might be required to reduce the value of its inventories.
Details of inventories are disclosed in Note 6.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

2.

Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)
(c)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumption (cont’d)
(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
Construction Contracts
The Group recognises construction contracts revenue and expenses in the profit or loss by using
the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that
construction costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total construction
costs.

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
a receivable is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the
Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the receivable and default or significant delay in payments.

Income taxes
Judgment is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions
and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has tax
recoverable and tax payable of Nil (2014: RM98,373) and RM184,051 (2014: Nil) respectively.

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
The Group and the Company apply the significant accounting policies set out below, consistently throughout
all periods presented in the financial statements unless otherwise stated.
(a)

Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiary companies
Subsidiary companies are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics.
The carrying amounts at the end of the reporting date for loans and receivables are disclosed in
Note 8.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Significant judgment is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the
construction costs incurred, the estimated total construction revenue and costs, as well as the
recoverability of the construction projects. In making the judgment, the Group evaluates based
on experience and by relying on the work of specialists. The details of construction contracts are
disclosed in Note 7.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(i)

Subsidiary companies (cont’d)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed off in profit or loss as incurred.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instruments and within the scope of MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated only if there is no indication of
impairment. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiary companies have been changed
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary companies are stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts are recognised in profit or loss. Where
an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note 3(h)(i) on impairment
of non-financial assets.
(ii)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiary companies without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary company is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(iii)

Disposal of subsidiary companies
If the Group loses control of a subsidiary company, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
company, including any goodwill, and non-controlling interests are derecognised at their carrying
value on the date that control is lost. Any remaining investment in the entity is recognised at
fair value. The difference between the fair value of consideration received and the amounts
derecognised and the remaining fair value of the investment is recognised as a gain or loss on
disposal in profit or loss. Any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(iv)

Goodwill on consolidation
The excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured at fair value is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary company
acquired (ie. a bargain purchase), the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

(b)

Foreign currency translation
(i)

Foreign currency transaction and balances

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at the reporting date are included in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising
on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operation. These are
initially taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve within equity until the disposal of
the foreign operations, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss. Exchange differences
arising on monetary items that form part of the Company’s net investment in foreign operation
are recognised in profit or loss in the Company’s financial statements or the individual financial
statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the reporting period except for the differences arising on the translation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
(ii)

Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising from business combinations before 1 January 2012 (the date of transition to
MFRS) which are treated as assets and liabilities of the Company. The income and expenses of
foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated
to RM at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
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Transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the functional currency of the respective Group
entities using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Following the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is not amortised but instead, it is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequent
when there is objective evidence that the carrying value may be impaired. See accounting policy
Note 3(h)(i) on impairment of non-financial assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(b)

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(ii)

Foreign operations (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary company, then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference
is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed off such that
control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the FCTR related
that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary company that includes a foreign
operation, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling
interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture
that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
(c)	Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The policy of recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in
accordance with Note 3(h)(i).
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, cost
of replacing component parts of the assets, and the present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of the assets after their use. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes
the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
The cost of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is
based on fair value at acquisition date. The fair value of property is the estimated amount for
which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a
willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The fair value of other items of plant
and equipment is based on the quoted market prices for similar items.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property,
plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in profit or loss.
Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed with
sufficient regularity, usually every five years, to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from the fair value of the land and buildings at the end of the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(c)	Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
(i)

Recognition and measurement (cont’d)

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:
Buildings
Factory equipment
Furniture, fittings and office equipment
Motor vehicles
Renovation and electrical installation
Computers

Over the remaining life
5 years
5 years
5 years
2 - 5 years
2 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the property, plant and equipment.
(d)

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group
and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The Group and the Company classify their financial assets depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired at initial recognition, into loans and receivables.
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Depreciation is recognised in the profit or loss on straight line basis to write off the cost of each
asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life. Freehold land is not depreciated.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

As at the date of revaluation, accumulated depreciation, if any, is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Any revaluation surplus arising upon appraisal of land is recognised in other comprehensive income
and credited to the revaluation reserve in equity. To the extent that any revaluation decrease or
impairment loss has previously been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase is credited
to profit or loss with the remaining part of the increase recognised in other comprehensive income.
Downward revaluations of land are recognised upon appraisal or impairment testing, with the
decrease being charged to other comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in
equity relating to this asset and any remaining decrease recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity on disposal of the asset is transferred to other comprehensive income.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(d)

Financial assets (cont’d)
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those maturing later
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

After initial recognition, financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation
process.
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Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade date
i.e. the date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset has expired or has been transferred and the Group and the Company have transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of consideration received and any cumulative gains or loss that had been
recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
(e)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definition of financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the
Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
The Group and the Company classify their financial liabilities at initial recognition, into the following
categories:
(i)	Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and
loans and borrowings.
Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Gains and losses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
(ii)

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specific payment to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specific debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(e)

Financial liabilities (cont’d)
A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss.

(f)	Offsetting of financial instruments

(g)

Inventories
Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable.
Cost of raw material is determined on a weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods consists of
direct material, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity).

(h)

Impairment of assets
(i)	Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (except for inventories, amount due from contract
customers, deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, investment property
measured at fair value and non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale)
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, or that are not yet available for
use, the recoverable amount is estimated each period at the same time.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating units. Subject to operating segment ceiling test, for
the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired
in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and
its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(h)

Impairment of Assets (cont’d)
(i)	Non-financial assets (cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which such impairment loss is recognised directly
against any revaluation surplus for the asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not
exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same asset. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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(ii)

Financial assets
All financial assets, other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss, investments
in subsidiary companies, are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has
been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the receivable and default or significant delay in payments. For certain
categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on
similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Receivables
together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i)

Construction contracts
Construction contracts are contract specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or a
combination of assets that are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology
and function or their ultimate purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is probable recoverable and contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Irrespective whether the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, when it is probable
that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probably that they will result in
revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured.

(j)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits and bank overdraft
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented
net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.

(k)

Share Capital
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments. Ordinary shares
are recorded at the nominal value of shares issued. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period they are
approved by the Board of Directors except for the final dividend which is subject to approval by the
Company’s shareholders.

(l)	Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specific in an arrangement.
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The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit or loss recognised on each contract is compared
against the progress billings up to the reporting period end. Where costs incurred and recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the balance is presented as amounts due
from contract customers. Where progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses), the balance is presented as amounts due to contract customers.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract
costs are recognised over the period of contract as revenue and expenses respectively by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period. The stage of
completion method is determined by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed
to date bear to the estimated total contract cost.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(l)	Leases (cont’d)
(i)

Finance lease
Leases in terms of which the Group and the Company assumes substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in the profit or loss.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
(ii)	Operating lease
Leases in which the Group and the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and, the leased assets are not recognised
in the statements of financial position.
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Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the reporting period in which they are incurred.
(m)

Revenue
(i)

Sale of goods
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

(ii)

Construction contracts
Revenue from construction contracts is accounted in accordance to the accounting policies as
described in Note 3(i).

(iii)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on accruals basis using the effective interest method.

(iv)

Management fee
Management fee is recognised on accrual basis when services are rendered.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(n)	Employee benefits
(i)

Short term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the
reporting period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company.
Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised
when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated
absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick and medical leave
are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii)

Defined contribution plans
As required by law, companies in Malaysia contribute to the state pension scheme, the Employee
Provident Fund (“EPF”). Some of the Group’s foreign subsidiary companies also make contributions
to their respective countries’ statutory pension schemes. Such contributions are recognised as
an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group
has no further payment obligations.

(iii)

Share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan for the employees of the
Group. Employee services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised
as an expense in the profit or loss over the vesting periods of the grant with a corresponding
increase in equity.
For options granted to the employees of the subsidiary companies, the fair value of the options
granted is recognised as cost of investment in the subsidiary companies over the vesting period
with a corresponding adjustment to equity in the Company’s financial statements.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to be vested. At the end of each
reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of share options that are expected
to be vested. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

•
59
•
Annual Report 2015

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as additional amount
expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the
reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(o)

Borrowing costs

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for theirs intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
(p)

Income taxes
Tax expense in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.
Tax expense in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method for all temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred
tax is not recognised for the temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction which is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(p)

Income taxes (cont’d)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

(q)

Segments reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-makers are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and make overall strategic decisions.
The Group’s operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets.

(r)

Contingencies
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Where it is not probable that an inflow or outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the asset or the obligation is disclosed as a contingent asset or contingent
liability, unless the probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent asset or contingent liability unless the probability of inflow or
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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–

–
–

3,150,000

At 31 December 2015

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015
4,474,525

375,475

253,699
121,776
–

4,850,000

–
–
–

3,150,000

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Foreign currency
	  translation differences

At 31 December 2015

233,777

4,185,543

20,858

4,017,567
147,118
–

4,419,320

166,309

469,033

5,518

433,027
30,488
–

635,342

678,023

878,714

6,635

672,493
246,894
(47,308)

1,556,737

22,707

29,760

2,806

20,972
5,982
–

52,467

8,725,341

5,938,525

35,817

5,397,758
552,258
(47,308)

14,663,866

		
At valuation
At cost
					
Furniture, 		
Renovation
					
Fittings and		
and
		
Freehold		
Factory	Office
Motor	Electrical
		Land
Buildings	Equipment	Equipment
Vehicles
Installation	Total
Group
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
2015
Cost/Valuation
At 1 January 2015
3,150,000
4,850,000
4,346,943
462,439
1,587,068
27,778
14,424,228
Additions
–
–
50,145
165,921
–
21,304
237,370
Disposals
–
–
–
–
(47,308)
–
(47,308)
Foreign currency
	  translation differences
–
–
22,232
6,982
16,977
3,385
49,576

4.	Property, Plant and Equipment
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3,150,000

At 31 December 2014

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014

1,587,068

861,471
161,436
(328,851)
(24,000)
2,437
672,493

914,575

462,439

448,641
19,744
–
(1,073)
(34,285)
433,027

29,412

4,346,943

4,026,732
148,827
(168,185)
–
10,193
4,017,567

329,376
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4,596,301

253,699

131,923
121,776
–
–

–
–
–
–

4,850,000

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Written off
Foreign currency
	  translation differences

3,150,000

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

At 31 December 2014

6,806

20,972

(21,140)

36,843
5,269
–
–

27,778

9,026,470

5,397,758

(42,795)

5,505,610
457,052
(497,036)
(25,073)

14,424,228

		
At valuation
At cost
					
Furniture, 		
Renovation
					
Fittings and		
and
		
Freehold		
Factory	Office
Motor	Electrical
		Land
Buildings	Equipment	Equipment
Vehicles
Installation	Total
Group
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
2014
Cost/Valuation
At 1 January 2014
3,150,000
4,850,000
4,466,644
481,862
1,176,688
48,450
14,173,644
Additions
–
–
37,481
15,552
754,694
–
807,727
Disposals
–
–
(168,185)
–
(328,851)
–
(497,036)
Written off
–
–
–
(1,165)
(24,000)
–
(25,165)
Foreign currency
	  translation differences
–
–
11,003
(33,810)
8,537
(20,672)
(34,942)

4.	Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

•
63
•

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

4.	Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
Renovation
and Electrical
Installation	Total
RM
RM
–
21,304

192,366
158,094

As 31 December 2015			

329,156

21,304

350,460

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015			
Charge for the financial year			

192,366
12,892

–
–

192,366
12,892

As 31 December 2015			

205,258

–

205,258
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Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015			

123,898

21,304

145,202

2014
Cost
At 1 January 2014/
31 December 2014			

192,366

–

192,366

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014/
31 December 2014			

192,366

–

192,366

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014			

–

–

–
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				 Furniture,
				
Fittings and
				Office
				Equipment
Company			RM
2015
Cost
At 1 January 2015			
192,366
Additions			
136,790

(a)

Assets held under finance leases
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group held under finance leases are as
follows:

		
					2015
					RM
Motor vehicles				

Group

656,558

Leased assets are pledged as security for finance lease liability as disclosed in Note 14.

2014
RM
883,910

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.	Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
(b)

The aggregate additional cost for the property, plant and equipment of the Company during the financial
year acquired under finance lease and cash payments are as follows:

		
			2015
			RM

2014
RM

2015
RM

Company

2014
RM

Aggregate costs		
Less: Finance lease 		

237,370
–

807,727
(627,000)

158,094
–

–
–

Cash payments		

237,370

180,727

158,094

–

Assets pledged as securities for a licensed bank
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group pledged as securities for bank
borrowing as disclosed in Note 18 are:

		
					2015
					RM

2014
RM

Freehold land				
Buildings				

1,850,000
4,106,979

1,850,000
4,218,229

					

5,956,979

6,068,229

Revaluation of freehold land and buildings
Freehold land and buildings of a subsidiary company were revalued on 3 and 4 December 2012, by
Messrs. MacReal International Sdn. Bhd., an independent professional valuer.
The fair value of freehold land and buildings of a subsidiary company are within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value was determined by based on Direct Comparable Method of Valuation that
reflects recent transaction price for similar properties.
There has been no change to the valuation technique during the financial year.
Had the land and buildings been measured using the cost model, their carrying amounts would be as
follows:

		
					2015
					RM

Group

2014
RM

Freehold land
Cost					
Less: Accumulated depreciation			

1,234,600
–

1,234,600
–

					

1,234,600

1,234,600

Buildings
Cost					
Less: Accumulated depreciation			

2,370,545
(647,058)

2,370,545
(599,647)

					

1,723,487

1,770,898

Total 				

2,958,087

3,005,498

•
65
•
Annual Report 2015

(d)

Group

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(c)

Group
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Investment in Subsidiary Companies
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Company
					2015
2014
					RM
RM
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In Malaysia:
At cost
Unquoted shares				
Less: Accumulated impairment losses			

7,120,059
(200)

7,120,059
(200)

					

7,119,859

7,119,859

Details of the subsidiary companies are as follows:
Name of
Company

Multi Square
Sdn. Bhd.

Country of
incorporation

Effective
equity interest
2015
2014
%
%

Principal activities

Malaysia

100

100

Manufacture and sale of paints, chemical
solvent, industrial chemicals, aluminium and
metal products.

Sersol Coatings
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Distribution of coating paints.

Multi Square
Coating (Thailand)
Co Ltd*

Thailand

100

100

Manufacture and sale of coatings, thinners
and industrial chemicals.

Malaysia

51

–

Held through
Multi Square
Sdn. Bhd.

Held through
Sersol Coatings
Sdn. Bhd.
Sersol NCK
Sdn. Bhd.
*

Dormant

Subsidiary companies not audited by UHY

The Group’s subsidiary company which has non-controlling interests are not material individually or in aggregate
to the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group.
Acquisition of a subsidiary company
On 19 August 2015, Sersol Coatings Sdn. Bhd. (“SCSB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary company of Multi Square
Sdn. Bhd. (“MSSB”), subscribed 510 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in Sersol NCK Sdn. Bhd. (“SNCK”) for
total cash consideration of RM510. Upon the subscription, SNCK became 51% owned subsidiary company
by SCSB.
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5.

Investment in Subsidiary Companies (Cont’d)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary company
						
2015
						
RM
Purchase consideration settled in cash,				

510

Cash and cash equivalents acquired				

510

From the date of acquisition, acquired subsidiary company has contributed Nil and RM10,314 to the Group’s
revenue and loss for the financial year respectively. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of
the financial year, the Group’s revenue and loss for the financial year would have been Nil and RM10,314
respectively.

6.

Inventories
		
					2015
					RM

Group
2014
RM

2,419,931
1,202,749

2,229,319
968,563

					

3,622,680

3,197,882

Recognised in profit or loss:
Inventories written off				
Reversal of inventories written down			

11,646
(31,259)

10,680
(2,385)

The reversal of inventories written down was made during the financial year when the related inventories were
sold above their carrying amounts.
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Raw materials				
Finished goods				

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Impact of the acquisition on the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
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7.

Amount Due from Contract Customers
		
					2015
					RM
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Contract costs incurred to-date				
Attributable profits				

Annual Report 2015

•
68
•

Group
2014
RM

858,110
30,854

–
–

					
888,964
Less: Progress billings				
(768,572)

–
–

					

120,392

–

Presented as:
Amount due from contract customers			

120,392

–

Retention sums on contract (included in trade receivables)		

41,349

–

8.	Trade Receivables
		
					2015
					RM

Group
2014
RM

Third parties				
Less: Accumulated impairment losses			

5,678,817
(421,287)

6,234,818
(2,103,249)

					

5,257,530

4,131,569

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days (2014: 120 days) term. Other
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case to case basis. They are recognised at their original invoice
amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Movements in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables are as follows:
		
					2015
					RM

Group
2014
RM

At 1 January				
2,103,249
Impairment losses recognised				
421,287
Reversals				
(2,103,249)

–
2,103,249
–

At 31 December				

2,103,249

421,287
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8.	Trade Receivables (Cont’d)
Analysis of the trade receivables ageing as at the end of the financial year is as follow:
		
					2015
					RM

Group
2014
RM

3,441,307

3,595,151

474,124
1,342,099

225,175
311,243

					

1,816,223

536,418

					
Impaired				

5,257,530
421,287

4,131,569
2,103,249

					

5,678,817

6,234,818

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy receivables with good payment
records with the Company.
As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of RM1,816,223 (2014: RM536,418) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default.

9.	Other Receivables
		
			2015
			RM

10.

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Other receivables		
Deposits		
Prepayments		

47,360
188,117
160,512

753
167,728
58,422

1,996
61,196
149,847

753
50,413
15,302

			

395,989

226,903

213,039

66,468

Amount Due from Subsidiary Companies
		
Company
					2015
2014
					RM
RM
Amount due from subsidiary companies			
Less: Accumulated impairment losses			

10,435,918
(320,346)

8,190,374
(320,346)

					

10,115,572

7,870,028

The amount is unsecured, non-trade in nature, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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The trade receivables of the Company that are individually assessed to be impaired amounting to RM421,287
(2014: RM2,103,249), related to customers that are in financial difficulties, have defaulted on payments or have
disputed on the billings. These balances are expected to be recovered through the debts recovery process.
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Neither past due nor impaired				
Past due but not impaired:
- Less than 30 days				
- More than 30 days				
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11.

Deposits, Cash and Bank Balances
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Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Cash and bank balances
Short-term deposits with
licensed banks		

6,934,217

2,096,672

4,710,806

283,186

–

2,000,000

–

2,000,000

			

6,934,217

4,096,672

4,710,806

2,283,186

In previous financial year, the interest rate of short-term deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of
the Company was 2.75% and 2.75% per annum respectively and the maturity of the deposits of the Group
and of the Company was 7 days and 7 days respectively.

12.

Share Capital
		
Group and Company
		
Number of shares
		2015
2014
2015
			Units	Units
RM
Ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each
Authorised
At 1 January/31 December		

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January		
Issued during the
financial year		
Arising from exercise of
SIS options (Note 24)
31 December		

Amount
2014
RM

5,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

500,000,000

500,000,000

195,272,000

192,902,000

19,527,200

19,290,200

19,527,000

–

1,952,700

–

550,000

2,370,000

55,000

237,000

215,349,000

195,272,000

21,534,900

19,527,200

During the current financial year, the Company issued:
(i)

19,527,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each pursuant to private placement at an issue price of
RM0.25 per placement share; and

(ii)

550,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each for cash arising from the exercise of options under its
Share Issuance Scheme at an option price of RM0.29 per ordinary share.

The new ordinary shares issued during the current financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
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13.

Reserves
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2015
RM

2014
RM

7,251,237
3,881,569

4,217,687
3,937,550

7,251,237
–

4,217,687
–

27,408

(44,227)

–

–

			
Accumulated losses

11,160,214
(15,511,123)

8,111,010
(13,728,018)

7,251,237
(6,545,877)

4,217,687
(6,451,183)

			

(4,350,909)

(5,617,008)

705,360

(2,233,496)

Non-distributable reserves
Share premium (Note a)
Revaluation reserve (Note b)		
Foreign currency translation
reserve (Note c)		

The nature of reserves of the Group and the Company is as follows:
(a)

Share premium

		
Group and Company
					2015
2014
					RM
RM
4,217,687
2,929,050
104,500

3,767,387
–
450,300

At 31 December				

7,251,237

4,217,687

Share premium comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above
the par value of the shares.
(b)

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve represents increases in the fair value of land and buildings, and decrease to
the extent that such decreases relate to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(c)

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of
the Group’s presentation currency.
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At 1 January				
Add: Premium arises from private placement		
Add: Premium arises from exercise of SIS options		

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

2014
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14.

Financial Lease Liabilities
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Group
2014
RM

Minimum lease payments
Within one year				
Later than one year but not later than two years			
Later than two years but not later than five years			

253,952
157,110
–

325,010
251,655
157,112

					
Less: Future finance charges				

411,062
(17,508)

733,777
(46,712)

Present value of minimum lease payments			

393,554

687,065

Present value of minimum lease payments
Within one year				
Later than one year but not later than two years			
Later than two years but not later than five years			

239,598
153,956
–

295,792
237,317
153,956

					

393,554

687,065

Analysed as:
Repayable within twelve months			
Repayable after twelve months				

153,956
239,598

391,273
295,792

					

393,554

687,065

The obligations under finance leases are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 4(a)). The interest
rate of the Company for the finance leases as at reporting date is ranging 2.45% to 3.90% (2014: 2.45% to
3.45%) per annum.

15.

Deferred Tax Liabilities
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

At 1 January		
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 22)

779,340
9,999

798,000
(18,660)

–
–

–
–

At 31 December		

789,339

779,340

–

–

Notes to the Financial Statements
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15.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Cont’d)
The net deferred tax liabilities and assets shown on the statements of financial position after appropriate
offsetting are as follow:
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

881,160
(91,821)

925,500
(146,160)

8,755
(8,755)

–
–

			

789,339

779,340

–

–

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities
Property,
plant and
equipment
RM

Revaluation
reserve
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

117,501
14,067
(39,747)

807,999
(18,660)
–

–
–
–

925,500
(4,593)
(39,747)

At 31 December 2015		

91,821

789,339

–

881,160

At 1 January 2014		
Recognised in profit or loss
Over provision in prior year

157,292
68,715
(108,506)

826,659
(18,660)
–

3,429
(3,429)
–

987,380
46,626
(108,506)

At 31 December 2014

117,501

807,999

–

925,500

						Property,
						
plant and
						
equipment
						
RM
Company
At 1 January 2015					
–
Recognised in profit or loss					
8,755
At 31 December 2015					

8,755
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Group
At 1 January 2015		
Recognised in profit or loss
Over provision in prior year		

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Deferred tax liabilities		
Deferred tax assets		
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15.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Cont’d)
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Group
At 1 January 2015		
Recognised in profit or loss
Over provision in prior year

Unutilised
capital
allowances
RM

Unutilised
tax
losses 	Others 	Total
RM
RM
RM

115,067
14,067
(37,313)

2,433
(2,433)

28,660
–
(28,660)

146,160
14,067
(68,406)

At 31 December 2015		

91,821

–

–

91,821

At 1 January 2014		
Recognised in profit or loss
Over provision in prior year		

75,980
66,282
(27,195)

113,400
2,433
(113,400)

–
28,660
–

189,380
97,375
(140,595)

At 31 December 2014		

115,067

2,433

28,660

146,160

						
Unutilised
						
capital
						
allowances
						
RM
Company
At 1 January 2015					
–
Recognised in profit or loss					
8,755
At 31 December 2015					

8,755

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Unutilised capital allowances
Unutilised tax losses		

847,859
8,044,180

582,107
6,876,522

210,259
2,654,989

208,058
2,654,989

			

8,892,039

7,458,629

2,865,248

2,863,047

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items as it may not have sufficient taxable
profits to be used to offset or they have arisen in subsidiary companies that have a recent history of losses.
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16.	Trade Payables
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days (2014: 30 to 90 days). Other
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case basis.

17.	Other Payables
		
			2015
			RM

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Other payables		
Accruals		

195,232
370,916

256,106
634,811

82
63,168

–
45,837

			

566,148

890,917

63,250

45,837

Bank Borrowing
Group
2014
RM
863,994

The above credit facilities obtained from a licensed bank is secured by the following:
(a)

corporate guarantee from the Company; and

(b)

legal charges over the freehold land and buildings of the Group as disclosed in Note 4(c).

Ranges of interest rate of bank borrowing is as follows:
		
					2015
Bank overdraft				

The maturity of the above facility is repayable within 1 year (2014: 1 year).

BLR - 2%

Group
2014
BLR - 2%
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					2015
					RM
Secured
Current
Bank overdraft				
3,694,046

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

18.

Group
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19.

Revenue

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

		
			2015
			RM

Annual Report 2015

•
76
•

20.

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Sale of goods and
services rendered
Management fee		
Construction contract		
Interest income		

20,278,566
–
888,964
125,414

16,799,870
–
–
126,546

–
960,000
–
125,414

169,998
1,200,000
–
126,546

			

21,292,944

16,926,416

1,085,414

1,496,544

Finance Costs
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Bank charges		
Interest expenses on:
- Bankers’ acceptance		
- Bank overdraft		
- Finance leases		

40,964

32,582

139

625

3,880
87,354
29,354

–
91,406
18,729

–
–
–

–
–
–

			

161,552

142,717

139

625
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21.	Loss Before Tax
Loss before tax is derived after charging/(crediting):
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

19,000
3,000
–

422,036
48,210
157,568
12,000
–
–
–

(1)
–
–
–
–
–
190,637
–
–
–
–
–
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Auditors’ remuneration:
- current year		
69,392
74,095
19,000
- other services		
3,000
3,000
3,000
Bad debts recovered		
(1,000)
(8,050)
–
Directors’ remuneration:
- Executive Directors:
- Salaries and other					
   emoluments		
673,860
732,440
300,620
- EPF
77,760
84,258
36,000
- Non-executive Directors:
- Fees		
160,984
167,244
150,000
- Salaries and other
emoluments
12,000
12,000
12,000
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment		
552,258
457,052
12,892
Gain on foreign exchange:
- realised		
(294,315)
(18,189)
–
- unrealised		
(10,333)
(109,037)
–
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of:
- Property, plant and
equipment
(8,000)
(56,525)
–
- Disposal of a subsidiary
company		
–
130,720
–
Impairment loss on:
- Trade receivables		
421,287
2,103,249
–
Interest income		
(62,073)
(35,442)
–
Rental of hostel		
31,718
26,004
–
Rental of skylift		
222
672
–
Rental of motor vehicles		
5,279
3,628
–
Rental of premises		
303,061
364,255
133,445
Reversal of inventories
written down		
(31,259)
(2,385)
–
Reversal of impairment losses
on trade receivables
(2,103,249)
–
–
Written off of:
- Bad debts		
1,973,999
–
–
- Inventories		
11,646
10,680
–
- Property, plant and
equipment		
–
92
–

2014
RM
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22.	Taxation
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			2015
			RM
Tax expenses recognised
in profit or loss:
Malaysian statutory tax:
- Current year tax provision
135,090
- Under provision in prior year
252,654
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Group

Company

2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

8,596
–

31,400
–

–
–

			

387,744

8,596

31,400

–

Deferred tax: (Note 15)
- Relating to reversal of
temporary differences
- Under provision in prior year

(18,660)
28,659

(50,749)
32,089

–
–

–
–

			

9,999

(18,660)

–

–

			

397,743

(10,064)

31,400

–

Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory rate of 25% (2014: 25%) on the chargeable income of
the estimated assessable profit for the financial year. The domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 24%
from the current year’s rate of 25% effective year of assessment 2016. The computation of deferred tax of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 has not reflected the change as it is not significantly impact to the Group’s
financial performance. Taxation for other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdiction.
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income
tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:
		
			2015
			RM
Loss before tax		

At Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 25% (2014: 25%)
Effect of different tax rate in
other jurisdictions		
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes		
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses
Deferred tax assets not
recognised		
Under provision of income
tax in prior year		
Under provision of deferred
tax in prior year		
Tax expense for the
financial year		

Group

Company

2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

(1,446,397)

(4,456,910)

(63,294)

(348,766)

(361,599)

(1,114,227)

(15,824)

(87,192)

(47,581)
(158,077)

(12,627)
(83,753)

–
(37,936)

–
–

325,335

153,955

84,610

54,608

(92,966)

–

–

–

451,318

1,014,500

550

32,584

252,654

–

–

–

28,659

32,089

–

–

397,743

(10,063)

31,400

–
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22.	Taxation (Cont’d)
The Group and the Company have the following estimated unutilised capital allowances and unutilised tax
losses available for set-off against future taxable profits. The said amounts are subjected to approval by the
Inland Revenue Board.
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

1,215,140
8,044,180

893,122
6,876,522

245,281
2,654,989

208,058
2,654,989

			

9,259,320

7,769,644

2,900,270

2,863,047

23.	Loss Per Share
(a)

Basic loss per share
The basic loss per share are calculated based on the consolidated loss for the financial year attributable
to the owners of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year as follows:
Group
2014
RM

Loss for the financial year, attributable to
owners of the parent				

(1,839,086)

(4,444,476)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (in unit)				

209,919,285

193,585,699

Basic loss per ordinary share (in sen)			

(0.88)

(2.30)
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					2015
					RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Unutilised capital allowances
Unutilised tax losses
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23.	Loss Per Share (cont’d)
(b)

Fully diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share are calculated based on the adjusted consolidated loss for the financial year
attributable to the owners of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the financial year have been adjusted for the dilutive effects of all potential ordinary shares as
follows:
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					2015
					RM
Loss for the financial year, attributable to
owners of the parent				
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24.

2014
RM

(1,839,086)

(4,444,476)

209,919,285

193,585,699

–

–

–

–

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares as at 31 December (Diluted)			

209,919,285

193,585,699

Diluted loss per ordinary shares (in sen)			

(0.88)

(2.30)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue used in the calculation
of basic loss per share				
Adjusts for:
Assuming full exercise of warrants			
Assuming full exercise of share issue
  scheme				

•
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Group

Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”)
On 23 February 2013, the Company’s shareholders approved the establishment of a SIS of not more than
30% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) at any point of time
during the duration of the SIS to eligible Directors and employees of the Group.
The salient features of the SIS scheme are, inter alia, as follows:
(i)

Eligible persons (full time employees and Director, whether executive or non-executive) of the Group
who have been confirmed on the date of the offer. The maximum allowance allotments for the directors
have been approved by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

(ii)

The aggregate number of shares to be issued under the SIS shall not exceed 30% of the total issued
and paid-up ordinary share capital of the Company for the time being.

(iii)

The Scheme shall be in force for a period of five (5) years from the implementation of the SIS.

(iv)

An exercise price shall be based on the volume weighted average market price of the shares of the
Company for the five (5) Market Days immediately preceding the date of offer with a discount of not
more than 10% or such other percentage of discount as maybe permitted by Bursa Securities or any
other relevant authorities and shall not be less than the par value of the shares of the Company of
RM0.10.
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24.

Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”) (Cont’d)
The new Company’s shares of RM0.10 each (“new Shares’) to be allotted and issued upon the exercise
of any SIS Options granted under the SIS will, upon allotment, issuance and full payment, rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing issued and paid-up shares of the Company, save and except
that the new Shares so allotted and issued will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments or
other distributions, which may be declared, made or paid, the entitlement date of which precedes the
date of allotment and issuance of such new shares. The new shares will be subject to the provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company. The SIS Option shall not carry any rights to vote at any
general meeting of the Company.

(vi)

Any SIS Option which has not been exercised by a Grantee shall be automatically terminated in the
following circumstances:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Termination of employment of the Grantee with the Group for any reason whatsoever, in which
event the SIS Option shall be automatically terminated on the day the Grantee notifies his employer
of his resignation or on the Grantee’s last day of employment, whichever is the earlier; or
Bankruptcy of the Grantee, in which event the SIS Option shall be automatically terminated on
the date a receiving order is made against the Grantee by a court of competent jurisdiction; or
Upon the happening of any other event which results in the Grantee being deprived of the beneficial
ownership of the SIS Option.

Movement in the number of shares options are as at follows:

At 31 December		

30,990,000 		

31,540,000

Options exercisable at
31 December		

30,990,000 		

31,540,000

During the financial year, 550,000 shares options were exercised. The weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for the financial year was RM0.29 (2014: RM0.29).
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2015
2014
				Weighted		Weighted
			Number of
average 	Number of
average
			share
exercise
share
exercise
			option
price
option
price
			Units
RM	Units
RM
Group
At 1 January
31,540,000 		
–
Granted during the
financial year
–
0.29
34,000,000
0.29
Exercised during the
financial year		
(550,000)
0.29
(2,370,000)
0.29
Lapsed during the
financial year		
–		
(90,000)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(v)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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24.

Share Issuance Scheme (“SIS”) (Cont’d)
The fair value of share options granted in previous financial year is based on the fair value of share options
granted, estimated by the management using the market price of the shares of Company minus exercise
price. The weighted average fair value of share options measured at grant date and the assumptions are as
follows:
		
					2015

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Weighted average fair value at grant date (RM)			
Weighted average share price at grant date (RM)			
Weighted average volatility (%)				
Expected weighted average option life (years)			
Expected dividend yield (%)				
Risk-free interest rate per annum (%)			

2014
0.18
0.31
85.99
5
–
3.67

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data, has been adjusted according to management’s
best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including the probability of meeting the
market conditions attached to the option), and behavioural considerations. The expected volatility is based
on the historical share price volatility over the past 1 year, adjusted for unusual or extraordinary volatility
arising from certain economic or business occurrences which is not reflective of its long term average level.
While the expected volatility is assumed to be indicative of future trends, it may not necessarily be the actual
outcome. No other features of the option grant were incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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0.18
0.31
85.99
5
–
3.67

Group

25.

Warrants
		
Group
					2015
2014
					Units	Units
At 1 January / 31 December				

96,151,000

96,151,000

The warrants were constituted under the Deed Poll dated 23 February 2013.
In year 2013, the Company had allotted and issued 96,351,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each together
with 96,351,000 free new detachable warrants on the basis of one (1) rights share together with one (1) warrant
for every one (1) existing Company’s share held at an issue price of RM0.10 per rights share.
Each warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new share at any time during the exercise
period and at the exercise price, subject to adjustments in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll.
Any warrants not exercised during the expiry period will thereafter lapse and cease to be valid for any purpose.
As at 31 December 2015, the total numbers of warrants that remain unexercised were 96,151,000 (2014:
96,151,000).
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26.

Staff Costs
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

4,717,398
52,229
412,208
21,683

4,107,377
37,960
378,520
45,575

331,700
771
39,650
3,423

827,682
3,231
94,406
29,088

			

5,203,518

4,569,432

375,544

954,407

Included in staff costs is aggregate amount of remuneration received by the Executive Directors of the Group
and of the Company during the financial year as below:
		
			2015
			RM

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Salaries, wages and
other emoluments
Social security contributions
Defined contribution plans

672,000
1,860
77,760

730,374
2,066
84,258

300,000
620
36,000

421,056
980
48,210

			

751,620

816,698

336,620

470,246

Related Party Disclosure
(a)

Identifying related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if
the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or joint control the party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may
be individuals or other entities.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or
indirectly. The key management personnel comprise the Directors and management personnel of the
Group, having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group entities directly or indirectly.
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27.

Group

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Salaries, wages and
other emoluments		
Social security contributions
Defined contribution plans
Other benefits		

Notes to the Financial Statements
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27.

Related Party Disclosure (Cont’d)
(b)

Significant related party transactions
Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under normal
trade terms. In addition to the related party balances disclosed in Note 12, the significant related party
transactions of the Group and of the Company are as follows:

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

		
			2015
			RM
Transactions with a
subsidiary company:
- Management fee
received/receivable		
–
Transactions with companies
in which certain Directors
of the Company have
substantial financial
interests:
- Professional fee		
- Rental of premises
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(c)

Group

87,000
82,064

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

–

960,000

1,200,000

16,000
–

87,000
38,064

16,000
–

Compensation of key management personnel:
The remuneration of key management personnel is same with the Directors’ remuneration as disclosed
in Note 21. The Group and the Company have no other members of key management personnel apart
from the Board of Directors.

28.

Segment Information
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on the 2 main geographical
segments as follows:
(a)

Malaysia
(i)
manufacture and sale of coatings, thinners and industrial chemical;
(ii)
investment holding and provision of management services; and
(iii) trading of architectural coating and wall surface finishing materials.

(b)

Thailand - manufacture and sale of coatings, thinners and industrial chemical.

Except as indicated above, no geographical segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable
operating segments.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit
or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the geographical
segments are presented under unallocated items. Unallocated items comprise mainly loans and borrowings
and related expenses, corporate assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters) and head office expenses.
Transactions between segments are carried out on agreed terms between both parties. The effects of such
inter-segment transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The measurement basis and classification are
consistent with those adopted in the previous financial year.
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28.

Segment Information (Cont’d)
					Total
		
Malaysia	Thailand	Others
segments
		
RM
RM
RM
RM

Elimination
Consolidated
RM		 RM

15,985,499
7,711,212

5,307,445
9,759

–
–

21,292,944
7,720,971

–
(7,720,971) (a)

21,292,944
–

		

23,696,711

5,317,204

–

29,013,915

(7,720,971)		

21,292,944

(1,203,246)
62,073

1,098,348
–

–
–

(104,898)
62,073

(133,610)		
–		

(238,508)
62,073

(501,835)

(50,423)

–

(552,258)

–		

(552,258)

(2,587,131)

(122,862)

–

(2,709,993)

–		

(2,709,993)

2,122,582

31,259

–

2,153,841

–		

2,153,841

(2,107,557)

956,322

–

(1,151,235)

Results
Segment results
Interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Other material items of
expenses (Note (c))
Other material items of
income (Note (b))
		

(133,610)

(1,284,845)

Consolidated loss for the financial year							

(1,844,140)

Assets
Segment assets
47,997,716
1,546,342
–
49,544,058
(24,487,909)		
25,056,149
Unallocated assets							–
Consolidated total assets							
25,056,149

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
17,499,695
276,029
–
17,775,724
(14,959,993)		
2,815,731
Deferred tax liabilities
789,339
–
–
789,339
–		
789,339
Unallocated liabilities							
4,271,652
Consolidated total
liabilities							
7,876,722

Capital expenditure
Property, plant and
equipment

214,753

22,617

–

237,370

–		

237,370
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Finance costs							
(161,552)
Taxation							
(397,743)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Group
2015
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue
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28.

Segment Information (Cont’d)
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					Total
		
Malaysia	Thailand	Others
segments
		
RM
RM
RM
RM
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Elimination
Consolidated
RM		 RM

Group
2014
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

13,566,876
5,125,532

3,359,540
4,745

–
–

16,926,416
5,130,277

–		
(5,130,277) (a)

16,926,416
–

		

18,692,408

3,364,285

–

22,056,693

(5,130,277)

16,926,416

(1,860,401)
35,434

406,660
–

(5,843)
8

(1,459,584)
35,442

–		
–		

(1,459,584)
35,442

(414,984)

(42,068)

–

(457,052)

–		

(457,052)

(2,500,348)

(108,648)

–

(2,608,996)

–		

(2,608,996)

173,612

2,385

–

175,997

–		

175,997

(4,566,687)

258,329

(5,835)

(4,314,193)

Results
Segment results
Interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Other material items of
expenses (Note (c))
Other material items of
income (Note (b))
		

–

(4,314,193)

Finance costs							
(142,717)
Taxation							
10,064
Consolidated loss for the financial year							

(4,446,846)

Assets
Segment assets
19,237,923
1,441,573
–
20,679,496
–		
20,679,496
Unallocated assets							
98,373
Consolidated total assets							
20,777,869

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
4,167,710
369,568
–
4,537,278
– 		
4,537,278
Deferred tax liabilities
779,340
–
–
779,340
–		
779,340
Unallocated liabilities							
1,551,059
Consolidated total
liabilities							
6,867,677

Capital expenditure
Property, plant and
equipment

799,903

7,824

–

807,727

–		

807,727
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28.

Segment Information (Cont’d)
(a)

Eliminations
Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

(b)

Other material income consists of the following items as presented in the respective notes to financial
statements:

		
					2015
					RM

2014
RM

Bad debts recovered				
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
Reversal of inventories written down			
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables		
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange			

1,000
8,000
31,259
2,103,249
10,333

8,050
56,525
2,385
–
109,037

					

2,153,841

175,997

Other material expense consists of the following items as presented in the respective notes to financial
statements:
Group
2014
RM

Inventories writtten off				
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary company			
Impairment losses on trade receivables			
Bad debts written off				
Property, plant and equipment written off			
Rental of premises				

11,646
–
421,287
1,973,999
–
303,061

10,680
130,720
2,103,249
–
92
364,255

					

2,709,993

2,608,996

Business segments
		
Revenue	Non-current assets
			2015
2014
2015
2014
			RM
RM
RM
RM
Coating and manufacturing

21,292,944

16,926,416

8,725,341

9,026,470
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					2015
					RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

(c)

Group

Notes to the Financial Statements
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29.

Financial Instruments
(a)

Classification of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at
amortised cost. The principal accounting policies in Note 3 describe how the classes of financial
instruments are measured, and how income and expense, including fair value gains and losses, are
recognised.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The following table analyses the financial assets and financial liabilities in the statements of financial
position by the class of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the
measurement basis:
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Financial
					
liabilities
				
Loans and
measured at
				
receivables amortised cost
				
RM
RM
Group
2015
Financial assets
Amount due from contract customers		
120,392
–
Trade receivables			
5,257,530
–
Other receivables			
235,477
–
Deposits, cash and bank balances		
6,934,217
–

Total
RM

120,392
5,257,530
235,477
6,934,217

				

12,547,616

–

12,547,616

Financial liabilities
Trade payables			
Other payables			
Finance lease liabilities			
Bank borrowing			

–
–
–
–

2,249,584
566,148
393,554
3,694,046

2,249,584
566,148
393,554
3,694,046

				

–

6,903,332

6,903,332

2014
Financial assets
Trade receivables			
Other receivables			
Deposits, cash and bank balances		

4,131,569
168,481
4,096,672

–
–
–

4,131,569
168,481
4,096,672

			

8,396,722

–

8,396,722

Financial liabilities
Trade payables			
Other payables			
Finance lease liabilities			
Bank borrowing			

–
–
–
–

3,646,361
890,917
687,065
863,994

3,646,361
890,917
687,065
863,994

				

–

6,088,337

6,088,337
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(a)

Classification of financial instruments (cont’d)
					
Financial
					
liabilities
				
Loans and
measured at
				
receivables amortised cost
				
RM
RM
Company
2015
Financial assets
Other receivables			
63,192
–
Amount due from subsidiary companies		
10,115,572
–
Deposits, cash and bank balances		
4,710,806
–

63,192
10,115,572
4,710,806

				

14,889,570

–

14,889,570

Financial liability
Other payables			

–

63,250

63,250

				

–

63,250

63,250

2014
Financial assets
Other receivables			
Amount due from subsidiary companies		
Deposits, cash and bank balances		

51,166
7,870,028
2,283,186

–
–
–

51,166
7,870,028
2,283,186

				

10,204,380

–

10,204,380

Financial liability
Other payables			

–

45,837

45,837

				

–

45,837

45,837

Total
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources are available
for the development of the Group’s operations whilst managing its credit, liquidity, foreign currency,
and interest rate risks. The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the
Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative transactions.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the abovementioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

Annual Report 2015

•
90
•

(i)	Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
principally from its receivables from customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from advances to subsidiary companies
and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiary companies.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Management
has a credit policy in place to control credit risk by dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
deposit with banks and financial institutions with good credit rating. The exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis and action will be taken for long outstanding debts.
The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statements of financial position at
the end of the financial year represents the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk except for financial guarantees provided to banks for banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is RM3,694,046 (2014:
RM863,994), representing the outstanding banking facilities of the subsidiary company as at the
end of the reporting period. There was no indication that the subsidiary company would default
on repayment as at the end of the reporting period.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are concentrated mainly on one debtor (2014: Nil), which
accounted for 31% (2014: Nil) of the total trade receivables as at the end of the financial year.
The significant exposure of credit risk for trade and other receivables (including amount owing
by subsidiary companies) by geographical region is as follows:
		
Group 	Company
			2015
2014
2015
2014
			RM	RM	RM	RM
Malaysia
Thailand		
Others		

5,064,403
–
589,116

3,544,850
813,622
–

10,328,611
–
–

7,936,496
–
–

			

5,653,519

4,358,472

10,328,611

7,936,496
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(ii)	Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

		

6,763,730

157,110

–

6,920,840 6,903,332

2014
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
Bank borrowing

3,646,361
890,917
325,010
863,994

–
–
251,655
–

–
–
157,112
–

3,646,361
890,917
733,777
863,994

3,646,361
890,917
687,065
863,994

		

5,726,282

251,655

157,112

6,135,049

6,088,337

		On demand or
		
within 1 year
					2015
2014
					RM
RM
Company
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables				
63,250
45,837
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		On demand 			Total	Total
		
or within 1
1 to 2
2 to 3 contractual carrying
		
year
years
years cash flows
amount
		
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Group
2015
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade payables
2,249,584
–
–
2,249,584 2,249,584
Other payables
566,148
–
–
566,148
566,148
Finance lease liabilities
253,952
157,110
–
411,062
393,554
Bank borrowing
3,694,046
–
–
3,694,046 3,694,046

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group’s and the Company’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the
objective of meeting business obligations on a timely basis. The Group finances its liquidity
through internally generated cash flows and minimises liquidity risk by keeping committed credit
lines available.
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(iii)

Market risks
Foreign currency risk

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies
other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollar (USD) and Singapore Dollar (SGD).
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
		
Denominated in
				USD
SGD	Total
				RM
RM
RM
Group
2015
Trade receivables			
451,356
296,635
747,991
Cash and bank balances		
1,574,868
221,938
1,796,806
Trade payables			
(101,894)
–
(101,894)
				

1,924,330

518,573

2,442,903

2014
Trade receivables			
Cash and bank balances		
Trade payables			

398,331
128,080
(360,616)

247,735
153,997
(1,408)

646,066
282,077
(362,024)

				

165,795

400,324

566,119

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss before tax to a reasonably
possible change in the USD and SGD exchange rates against RM, with all other variables held
constant.
		
2015
			
Change in	Effect on
			
currency
loss
			
rate
before tax
			 %
RM

2014
Change in	Effect on
currency
loss
rate
before tax
%
RM

USD
- Strengthened		
- Weakened		

5%
5%

96,217
(96,217)

5%
5%

8,290
(8,290)

SGD
- Strengthened		
- Weakened		

5%
5%

25,929
(25,929)

5%
5%

20,016
(20,016)
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(iii)

Market risks (cont’d)
Interest rate risk
The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes
in interest rates. The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash
flows due to changes in interest rates.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial
instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2015
RM

2014
RM

–
(393,554)

2,000,000
(687,065)

–
–

2,000,000
–

Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities
(3,694,046)

(863,994)

–

–

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets		
Financial liabilities

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments
A change in 1% interest rate at the end of the reporting period would have increased/(decreased)
the Group’ loss before tax by RM36,940 (2014: RM8,640), arising mainly as a result of lower/
higher interest expense on floating rate loans and borrowings. This analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant. The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity
analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.
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2014
RM

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposure from interest bearing borrowings by obtaining
financing with the most favourable interest rates in the market. The Group constantly monitors its
interest rate risk by reviewing its debt portfolio to ensure favourable rates are obtained. The Group
does not utilise interest swap contracts or other derivative instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.
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29.

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(c)

Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of short term receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents and short
term borrowings approximate their fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these financial
instruments and insignificant impact of discounting.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

It was not practicable to estimate the fair value due of investment in unquoted equity due to the lack
of comparable quoted prices in an active market and the fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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The table below analyses financial instruments those not carried at fair value for which fair value is
disclosed, together with their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statements of financial
position.
		
Fair value of financial instruments
		
those not carried at fair value
						
Carrying
			Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
amount
			RM
RM
RM
RM
Group
2015
Financial liability
Finance lease liabilities		
–
149,217
–
153,956

2014
Financial liability
Finance lease liabilities		

–

367,502

–

391,273

(i)	Policy on transfer between levels
The fair value of an asset to be transferred between levels is determined as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers between levels during current and previous financial years.
(ii)	Level 1 fair value
Level 1 fair value is derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.
(iii)	Level 2 fair value
Level 2 fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).
Non-derivative financial instruments
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value
of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of
the reporting period.
(iv)	Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair values for the financial assets and liabilities are estimated using unobservable inputs.
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30.

Contingent Liabilities
		
Company
					2015
2014
					RM
RM
Corporate guarantees given to licensed bankers for
credit facilities granted to a subsidiary company			

31.

5,000,000

5,000,000

Material Litigation

The Board had announced that E W Plastic Sdn. Bhd. had wound up on 15 September 2015 by the order of
the Johor Bahru High Court based on the Winding up Petition.
MSSB had filed a suit for the sum of RM1,973,149 against Lee Chee Meng (“LCM”), guarantor for the
Respondent which is fixed for hearing on 15 January 2015. The High Court awarded judgement against LCM
in the sum of RM1,973,149 with interest at 5% per annum. The said LCM being dissatisfied with the outcome
had filed an appeal to the Court of Appeal and had subsequently failed in his appeal. The High Court judgment
dated 15 January 2015 remains valid and enforceable against LCM.

Capital Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s policy is to maintain a prudent level of gearing
ratio that complies with debt covenants. The gearing ratios at end of the reporting period are as follows:
		
			2015
			RM

Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

Loans and borrowings		
Finance lease liabilities
Less: Deposits, and cash and
    bank balances

3,694,046
393,554

863,994
687,065

–
–

–
–

(6,934,217)

(4,096,672)

(4,710,806)

(2,283,186)

Net debt		

(2,846,617)

(2,545,613)

(4,710,806)

(2,283,186)

Total equity		

17,183,991

13,910,192

22,240,260

17,293,704

Debt-to-equity ratio (%)		

#

#

^

^
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32.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Multi Square Sdn. Bhd. (“MSSB”), had presented the winding up
petition against E W Plastic Sdn. Bhd. (“the Respondent”) for the sum of RM1,973,149 on 10 October 2014
with Kuala Lumpur High Court and transferred to the Johor Bahru High Court.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

32.

Capital Management (Cont’d)
#

Gearing ratio not applicable to the Group as the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 is sufficient to cover the entire borrowing obligations.

^

Gearing ratio not applicable as the Company has no borrowings as at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

The Group and the subsidiary companies are not subject to any external imposed capital requirements.
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33.

Date of Authorisation for Issue
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution
of Directors on 28 March 2016.

Notes to the Financial Statements
– continued

34.

Supplementary Financial Information on the Disclosure of Realised and
Unrealised Profits or Losses
The following analysis of realised and unrealised accumulated losses of the Group and of the Company
as at the reporting date is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and prepared in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Group

Company
2014
RM

2015
RM

2014
RM

(12,047,772)
32,994

(10,491,690)
131,459

(6,545,877)
–

(6,451,183)
–

			
Less: Consolidation
    adjustments

(12,014,778)

(10,360,231)

(6,545,877)

(6,451,183)

(3,496,345)

(3,367,787)

–

–

Total accumulated losses

(15,511,123)

(13,728,018)

(6,545,877)

(6,451,183)

Accumulated losses of
the Company and its
subsidiary companies
- Realised 		
- Unrealised 		
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The disclosure of realised and unrealised profits or losses above is solely for complying with the disclosure
requirements stipulated in the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and should not be applied for
any other purposes.

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

		
			2015
			RM

list OF

Properties

as at 31 DECEMBER 2015

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)
Annual Report 2015

Approximate
Age of
Building
(years)

Total Land
Area
(square
feet)

Total Built
Up Area
(square
feet)

NBV
31.12.15

Year of
Acquisition/
Date of
Revaluation

Title/Location/
Address

Description/
Existing Use

Multi Square Sdn Bhd

No.1, Jalan Anggerik
Mokara 31/59,
Kota Kemuning,
Seksyen 31,
40460 Shah Alam
Selangor.

Marketing
office,
warehouse &
factory.

Freehold

17

5,909

4,550

1,667,544

2000/
03.12.2012

Multi Square Sdn Bhd

No. 28
Jalan Canggih 1
Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang,
81800 Ulu Tiram.
Johor

Office,
warehouse &
factory

Freehold

20

52,889

35,416

5,956,981

2002/
04.12.2012

Registered Owner
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Tenure/
Date of
Expiry of
Leasehold
Land

analysis OF

shareholdings

as at 25 march 2016

Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
Class of Shares
Voting Rights

:
:
:
:

RM50,000,000.00
RM21,534,900.00
Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 each
One vote per share

Distribution of Shareholders
% of	No. of
Shareholders
Shares

%

0.57
6.43
32.72
49.01
11.23

494
125,959
6,012,449
51,379,000
117,829,200

0.00
0.06
2.79
23.86
54.71

0.04

40,001,898

18.58

TOTAL		 2,628

100.00

215,349,000

100.00

No.	Name	No. of Shares

%

Thirty (30) Largest Shareholders

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

SERSOL HOLDINGS SDN BHD
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR AZMIL KHALILI BIN KHALID (PB)
MALAYSIAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT SDN BHD
CONSOLINGROW SDN BHD
YONG LOY HUAT
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR LIAW TZE SHUNG @ RICHARD (PB)
BASKARAN A/L GOVINDA NAIR
CHAH KONG MIN @ CHOY SOI TUCK
TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG CHIEW KEE
KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR JEE TAI CHEW (021)
CHEN KHEK KIONG
TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE FOOK KHEUN
RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
BASKARAN A/L GOVINDA NAIR
CHUA SIEW CHEN
ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SI THO YOKE MENG (6000156)
TA NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HU YITENG
SIEW YUEN WAI

40,001,898
9,213,000

18.575
4.278

7,174,100
5,300,000
3,500,000
3,359,000

3.331
2.461
1.625
1.560

3,100,000
2,800,000
2,250,000

1.440
1.300
1.045

2,130,000

0.989

2,082,300
1,950,000

0.967
0.906

1,600,000

0.743

1,424,400
1,400,000

0.661
0.650

1,354,100

0.629

900,000

0.418

•
99
•
Annual Report 2015

Less than 100		
15
100 to 1,000		
169
1,001 to 10,000		
860
10,001 to 100,000		1,288
100,001 to 10,767,449		
295
(less than 5% of issued shares)		
10,767,450		
1
(5% of issued shares) and above		

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

		No. of
Size of Shareholdings		
Shareholders

Analysis of Shareholdings
– continued

Thirty (30) Largest Shareholders (Cont’d)

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

No.	Name	No. of Shares

Annual Report 2015

•
100
•

18. CHANG QUAI HUNG
19. WONG THIEW WAH
20. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIAW TZE SHUNG
	  @ RICHARD (E-KKU)
21. WORLDWIDE VENTURES HOLDINGS LIMITED
22. MING KEE CHOY
23. JF APEX NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NISHALNI NAIDU
	  A/P SURIAPRAGASAM (STA2)
24. LIM SOO JEE
25. LIM BENG HOCK
26. NG KOOI KEE
27. SI THO YOKE MENG
28. CHANG CHOO LEAN
29. LEE KIM THONG
30. YIN YIT FUN

%

860,000
850,000
785,000

0.399
0.395
0.365

765,000
750,000
748,900

0.355
0.348
0.348

741,000
740,000
713,500
700,000
690,000
650,000
613,000

0.344
0.344
0.331
0.325
0.320
0.302
0.285

Indirect No.
of Shares

%

List of Substantial Shareholders
			
No.	Name		

Direct No.		
of Shares
%

1.
2.
3.

SerSol Holdings Sdn. Bhd.		
Mohd Nazifuddin Bin Mohd Najib
Lim Kim Chai		

40,001,898
–
–

18.575
–
–

–
40,001,898 *
40,001,898 *

–
18.575
18.575

*

Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 via his interest in SerSol Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

List of Directors’ Shareholdings
			
No.	Name		

Direct No.		
of Shares
%
250,000
170,000
1,349
48

0.116
0.079
0.001
0.000

Indirect No.
of Shares
–
–
–
5,300,000 *

%

1.
2.
3.
4.

Ong Chooi Lee 		
Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt		
Toh Hong Chye		
Tan Fie Jen		

–
–
–
2.461

*

Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 via his interest in Consolingrow Sdn.
Bhd.

analysis OF

WARRANT HOLDINGS

as at 25 march 2016

Number of Warrants in issue
Exercise price of the warrants
Expiry date of warrants
Rights of Warrants Holder

:
:
:
:

96,151,000
RM0.18
18 April 2023
The Warrants holders are not entitled to any voting rights or to
participate in any distribution and/or offer of further securities in
our Company until and unless such Warrants holders exercise their
Warrants into new ordinary shares of the Company.

Distribution of Warrant Holders
% of
Warrant	No. of
holders
Warrants

%

1
28
203
532
150

0.11
3.06
22.19
58.14
16.39

78
20,700
1,477,349
23,486,000
61,165,924

0.00
0.02
1.54
24.43
63.61

1

0.11

10,000,949

10.40

TOTAL		

915

100.00

96,151,000

100.00

Direct No.		
of Warrants
%

Indirect No.
of Warrants

%

List of Directors’ Warrant Holdings
			
No.	Name		
1.
2.
3.
4.

Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt		
Tan Fie Jen		
Ong Chooi Lee 		
Toh Hong Chye 		

310,000
250,024
250,000
1,349

0.322
0.260
0.260
0.001

–
1,000,000 *
–
–

–
1.040
–
–

*

Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 via his interest in Consolingrow Sdn.
Bhd.
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Less than 100		
100 to 1,000		
1,001 to 10,000		
10,001 to 100,000		
100,001 to 4,807,549		
(less than 5% of issued warrants)		
4,807,550		
(5% of issued warrants) and above		

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

		No. of
		Warrant
Size of Warrant holdings		
holders

Analysis of Warrant Holdings
– continued

Thirty (30) Largest Warrant Holders
No.	Name	No. of Warrants

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

1.
2.
3.

Annual Report 2015
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SERSOL HOLDINGS SDN BHD
OOI HAN EWE
AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT - AMBANK (M) BERHAD FOR
	  SI THO YOKE MENG (SMART)
4. BASKARAN A/L GOVINDA NAIR
5. RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
BASKARAN A/L GOVINDA NAIR
6. LIM CHIN KIONG
7. SI THO YOKE MENG
8. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR JEE TAI CHEW (021)
9. TEO CHIN LENG
10. GAN GEOK POH
11. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HON PANSY (001)
12. LEO KOK MENG
13. PEH ENG TECK
14. AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN BOON HUAT (TAN1456C)
15. CONSOLINGROW SDN BHD
16. YIN YIT FUN
17. KHOO JENNY
18. JEE TAI CHEW
19. PHUA LAI SAN
20. TAN SWEE KOK
21. YU KIM LUNG
22. CHOO KIAN LOO
23. CHU KENG WAH
24. GOH THIAM SENG
25. GAN PEI LING
26. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHONG FUT LING (001)
27. TAN BOOI KENG
28. TAN SWEE BOON
29. TEH YENG SONG
30. CHIN CHOW YEONG
			

%

10,000,949
4,053,100
3,400,000

10.401
4.215
3.536

3,343,300
2,299,000

3.477
2.391

2,000,000
1,700,000
1,650,000

2.080
1.768
1.716

1,500,000
1,444,200
1,300,000

1.560
1.502
1.352

1,237,800
1,100,000
1,000,000

1.287
1.144
1.040

1,000,000
922,000
744,800
743,000
691,500
643,000
600,000
599,900
555,000
549,800
500,000
500,000

1.040
0.959
0.775
0.773
0.719
0.669
0.624
0.624
0.577
0.572
0.520
0.520

500,000
500,000
500,000
462,700

0.520
0.520
0.520
0.481

Notice of THIRTEENTH

annual general meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of SerSol Berhad (“SerSol” or “Company”)
will be held at Gallery 1, Level 1 Concorde Hotel Kuala Lumpur, No. 2 Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50200 Kuala Lumpur on
Friday, 27 May 2016 at 9.00 a.m. for the following purposes:
AGENDA
Please refer to
Note 7

2.		To re-elect Mr Tan Fie Jen who is retiring under Article 101 of the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Ordinary
Resolution 1

3.		To re-elect Mr Toh Hong Chye who is retiring under Article 101 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Ordinary
Resolution 2

4.		To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution pursuant to Section 129(6)
of the Companies Act, 1965:Ordinary
Resolution 3

5.		To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM150,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2015.

Ordinary
Resolution 4

6.		To re-appoint Messrs UHY as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary
Resolution 5

As Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution:7.

AUTHORITY UNDER SECTION 132D OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965 FOR THE
DIRECTORS TO ALLOT AND ISSUE SHARES
“THAT, pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and
are hereby authorised to allot and issue shares in the Company at any time until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions
and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten per
centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being, subject
always to the approval of all relevant Regulatory Authorities being obtained for such
allotment and issuance.”

8.

To transact any other business that may be transacted at an annual general meeting
of which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the Companies Act,
1965 and the Articles of Association of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
TAI YIT CHAN (MAICSA 7009143)
TAN AI NING (MAICSA 7015852)
Company Secretaries
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Date: 29 April 2016

Ordinary
Resolution 6
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“That pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act, 1965, Dato’ Seow Thiam
Fatt be re-appointed as Director to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.”

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

1.		To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 together with Reports of the Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

Notice of Thirteenth Annual General Meeting
– continued

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

Notes
1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions
of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

A member may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints two
(2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his shareholdings
to be represented by each proxy.

3.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds shares in the Company for
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities
Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised
nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

4.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the hand of
the attorney.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy, with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed or a notarially certified or office copy of such power or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s
Share Registrar’s office at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the meeting
or any adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in default the
instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

6.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 23
May 2016 shall be eligible to attend the meeting.

7.

Agenda 1 is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does
not require a formal approval from shareholders of the Company and hence, Agenda 1 is not put forward for
voting.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE ON SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolution 6
-Resolution pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
The Company had, during its Twelfth Annual General Meeting held on 15 May 2015, obtained its shareholders’
approval for the general mandate for issuance of shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
(“the Act”). The Company did not issue any shares pursuant to this mandate obtained.
The Ordinary Resolution 6 proposed under item 7 of the Agenda is a renewal of the general mandate for issuance
of shares by the Company under Section 132D of the Act. The mandate, if passed, will provide flexibility for the
Company and empower the Directors to allot and issue new shares speedily in the Company up to an amount
not exceeding in total ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital (excluding treasury shares, if any) of the
Company for such purpose as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company. This would eliminate
any delay arising from and cost involved in convening a general meeting to obtain approval of the shareholders for
such issuance of shares. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire
at the next AGM.
The authority will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited
to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding investment project(s) and/or working capital.

Notice of Thirteenth Annual General Meeting
– continued

PERSONAL DATA POLICY

SERSOL BERHAD (602062-X)

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual
General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use
and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing
and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes
and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and in order
for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines
(collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of
such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of
the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will
indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result
of the member’s breach of warranty.
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SERSOL BERHAD
(Company No. 602062-X)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM
CDS account no. of authorised nominee

No. of shares held

I/We, ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL NAME AND NRIC/PASSPORT NO/COMPANY NO)

of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a member(s) of SERSOL BERHAD, hereby appoint______________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL NAME AND NRIC/PASSPORT NO)

of________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her,__________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL NAME AND NRIC/PASSPORT NO)

of________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her, ^ the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to attend and vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Thirteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Gallery 1, Level 1 Concorde Hotel Kuala Lumpur, No. 2 Jalan Sultan Ismail,
50200 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 27 May 2016 at 9.00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof.

^

IIf you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy/proxies, kindly insert the name(s) of the person(s) desired and
delete the words “or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting”.

Mark “X” on either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made, the proxy may vote on the resolution or
abstain from voting as the proxy thinks fit. If you appoint two proxies and wish them to vote differently, this should be specified.
My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:
NO.
1

2
3
4
5
6
7

AGENDA
To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 together with Reports of the Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION
Resolution 1 – To re-elect Mr Tan Fie Jen as Director who retires pursuant to Article
101 of the Company’s Articles of Association
Resolution 2 - To re-elect Mr Toh Hong Chye as Director who retires pursuant to Article
101 of the Company’s Articles of Association
Resolution 3 – To re-appoint Dato’ Seow Thiam Fatt as Director in accordance with
Section 129(6) of the Companies Act, 1965
Resolution 4 – To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM150,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015
Resolution 5 – To re-appoint Messrs UHY as Auditors of the Company and authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration
Resolution 6 – Authority under Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 for the
Directors to allot and issue shares

* Strike out whichever not applicable

FOR

AGAINST

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies:

Percentage
___________________________________ 				
Proxy 1
%
Signature/Common Seal		
Proxy 2
%
Date:_______________________________

Total

100%

✄

Notes
1.
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall
not apply to the Company.
2.
A member may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the
appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
3.
Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in
one securities account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, there is no limit to
the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
4.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the
appointor is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the hand of the attorney.
5.
The instrument appointing a proxy, with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified or
office copy of such power or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s Share Registrar’s office at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8
First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding
the meeting or any adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy
shall not be treated as valid.
6.
In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 23 May 2016 shall be eligible to
attend the meeting.
7.
Agenda 1 is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require a formal approval
from shareholders of the Company and hence, Agenda 1 is not put forward for voting.
PERSONAL DATA POLICY
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and /or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms
set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 29 April 2016.
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TOTAL LOGISTICS UNDER ONE ROOF
• Air & Sea Services  •  Cross Border Transport - Malaysia / Singapore
• Warehousing Services  • Custom Declaration  
• Inland Trucking  • Haulage

Lian Soon Express Sdn Bhd ( 406135-H )
My Logistics Sdn. Bhd ( 682561-X )
No. 3-01 & 5-01, Jalan Sri Perkasa 2/18, Taman Tampoi Utama, 81200 Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia
Tel : 07-2414851, 07-2414852 Fax : 07-2416088

SERSOL BERHAD
(602062-X)

1-40-2, Menara Bangkok Bank, Berjaya Central Bank,
No 105, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
T: +603 - 2181 3993 F: +603 - 2181 6688
Factory Location
28, Jalan Canggih 1, Taman Perindustrian Cemerlang,
81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor, Malaysia
T: +607 - 861 1112 / +607 - 861 1113 F: +607 - 861 9261 / +607 - 863 3116

www.sersol.com.my
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